
BINNY LIMITED
Estd 1799
CIN No. : L 17111TN1969PLC005736

December 14, 2025

Corporate Relationship Department
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Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower,
Dalal Street,
Mumbai -400 001

Scrip Code: 514215

Dear Sir / Madam,

Sub: Annual Report for Financial Year 2023-24 and Notice of the 55" Annual General
Meeting - Compliance with Regulation 30, 34 & 36 (1) (b) of the Securities Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015("ListingRegulations")

This is further to our letter dated December 4, 2025 intimating that the 55" Annual General
Meeting of Binny Limited ('Company') will be held on Wednesday, December 31. 2025
through Video Conferencing / CAVM at : 5 a.m (IST).
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and 34(1) of the Listing Regulations, we enclose the following:

1. Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
2. Notice of the 55" Annual General Meeting of the Company (including e-voting

instructions). The Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 along with Notice of55" AGM is also being made available on the website of the Company at
https://binnylimited.in/andBSEwebsiteatwww.bscindia.com.

The said Notice which forms a part of the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 has
been sent electronically to the Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the
Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company/Depositories viz. the National
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Pursuant to Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SFRI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 245, a letter providing a web-link and exact path of the Annual
Report of the Company for FY 2023-24is being sent to those Members who have not
registered their e-mail addresses with the Company/Depositories.

Website Link ofAnnual Report Exact path of the Annual Report
Home Page > Click on "Investor Relations"

https://binnvlimited.ininvestor-center Select "Annual Reports" Select "AnnualReports"
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We request you to take note of the same and visit eur website/link to access the Annual
Report. This letter is being sent to those Members who have not registered their email address
with their Depository Participants as on the cut-olf date i.e., 24th December 2025.

We request shareholders who have not registered/updated their email IDs to approach the
Company/RTA/Depository Participant for the same.

Kindly take the above on record and oblige.

Yours sincerely,

For Binny Limited
7

Sudhir Anand
Company secretary and Compliance Officer

600012

Regd. Office :

No.1, Cooks Road, Perambur, Chennai - 0544 012. Tel No.: 044-2662 1053, e-mail : binnyho@binnyitd.in
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Fifty Fifth Annual General Meeting of Binny Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 
31st December, 2025 at 11:45 a.m. IST by way of Video Conferencing (“VC”) or other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), 
to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the Reports of the 
Auditors and Board of Directors thereon for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company which includes the Audited Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended 
01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 including its schedules and the notes attached together with report of the 
Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered 
and adopted.”

2.	 To Appoint M/s Venkatesh & Co, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s Venkatesh & Co , 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004636S), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. from the conclusion of this 55th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of Sixtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held during the Financial year 2028-
2029, at such remuneration as may be approved by the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company from 
time to time. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby 
authorized to revise/ alter/ modify/ amend the terms and conditions and/ or remuneration, from time to time, as may 
be mutually agreed with the Auditors, during the tenure of their appointment.

	 Special Business:

3.	 To appoint M/s. RLS & Associates, Company Secretary in practice as Secretarial Auditors for a term of one year 
(Financial Year 2023-24) and fix their remuneration.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, if any, and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force) and subject to receipt of such other approvals, consents and permissions as may be 
required, M/s. RLS & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, having Peer review No.2491/2022 and Certificate 
of Practice No. 17498 be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of One 
year (Financial Year 2023-24), to hold office till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’), at a 
remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to fix the annual remuneration plus applicable 
taxes and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. RLS & Associates, Secretarial Auditor, during their tenure as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in consultation with M/s. RLS & 
Associates.”

4.	 To appoint M/s. RLS & Associates, Company Secretary in practice as Secretarial Auditors for a term of one year 
(Financial Year 2024-25) and fix their remuneration.
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	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, if any, and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
and Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force) and subject to receipt of such other approvals, consents and permissions as may be 
required, M/s. RLS & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, having Peer review No.2491/2022 and Certificate 
of Practice No. 17498 be and is hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of One 
year (Financial Year 2024-25), to hold office till the conclusion of 56th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’), at a 
remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

	 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to fix the annual remuneration plus applicable 
taxes and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. RLS & Associates, Secretarial Auditor, during their tenure as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in consultation with M/s. RLS & 
Associates.”

	 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For BINNY LIMITED

SATHYANARAYANAN BALAKRISHNAN
 WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

DATE: 04 DECEMBER, 2025
PLACE: CHENNAI

Notes: 

1. 	 Annual General Meeting through video conference /other video conference: 

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) permitted holding of the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the MCA Circulars, AGM of the Company 
is being held through VC/OAVM. The Registered Office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for 
the AGM. [General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation 
to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013”, 
General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 
09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 in relation to “Clarification on holding of AGM through VC/OAVM, collectively 
referred to as “MCA Circulars”] and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) also issued Circular dated 
May 12, 2020, October 3, 2024 and the latest being Circular dated September 22, 2025, (hereinafter together 
referred as “Circulars”), has permitted the Companies to conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM until further notice 
and the requirement of Regulation 44(4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) is dispensed with temporarily.

	 In compliance with these Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/ OAVM facility, 
which does not require the physical presence of members at a common venue. Accordingly, the facility for the 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Route Map, Proxy Form 
and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, 
representatives of members such as Body Corporates, the President of India or the Governor of a State can attend the 
AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. The recorded transcript of the AGM will be hosted 
on the website of the Company post the AGM.

	 In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only such joint holder who is first by the order in which the names stand 
in the register of members will be entitled to vote.

	 The Company has opted Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL) for conducting the AGM. 

	 In line with the aforesaid SEBI and MCA Circulars, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 is being 
sent only through electronic mode to those shareholders whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Shareholder may note that Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 have been uploaded on the website of 
the Company at https://binnylimited.in/.

https://binnylimited.in
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	 The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 
i.e www.evotingindia.com. 

	 Shareholders holding shares in physical mode may share the particulars by email to investor@cameoindia.com to 
get the soft copy of the Notice of AGM and the Annual Report. Members can attend and participate in the AGM 
through VC/ OAVM facility only.

2. 	 In pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as 
the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
cast their votes through e-voting

3. 	 Members who have not registered or who wish to update their e-mail ID, postal address, telephone/mobile 
numbers, Permanent Account Numbers, bank account details are requested to register/intimate the same with their 
Depository Participant, if the shares are held by them in electronic form and in case of members holding shares 
in physical form, all intimations are to be sent to M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, at investor@cameoindia.com.

4. 	 Corporate members intending to send their Authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send 
to the Company a certified scanned copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend the 
AGM through VC or OAVM on its behalf and vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/ authorization shall 
be sent to the following e-mail address srirampcs@gmail.com with a copy marked to investor@cameoindia.com.

5. 	 In terms of Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, brief 
particulars of the Directors who are proposed to be appointed/re-appointed at this meeting forms part of the notice.

6. 	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 29TH December,2025 
to 31ST December,2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

7. 	 Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility provided by CDSL allows participation of up to 1,000 Members 
on a first-come-first-served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors, etc. can attend the 
55th AGM without any restriction on account of first-come first-served principle, in accordance with the circulars 
issued by MCA in this regard. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after 
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

8. 	 The Member’s log-in to the Video Conferencing platform using the remote e-voting credentials shall be considered 
for record of attendance at the AGM and members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

9. 	 Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

10. 	 The Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) of the Company is M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, No. 1, 
Subramanian Building, Club House Road, Anna Salai, Chennai-600002, Tamil Nadu. Please send all correspondence 
including requests for transmission of shares, change of address etc. to RTA of the Company.

11. 	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, in their registered address to the RTA. Members holding 
shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate/update their e-mail address and PAN with their respective 
Depository Participants.

12. 	 Members are requested to furnish a copy of the PAN Card to the RTA for registration of transfer / transmission of 
shares.

13. 	 Members, who are individuals may avail the facility of nomination as provided in Section 72 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 wherein a member may nominate in the prescribed manner with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer 
Agent. In respect of shares held in electronic/DEMAT form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective 
Depository Participant.

14. 	 In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and amendments made there under and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited 

www.bseindia.com
www.evotingindia.com
mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
mailto:srirampcs@gmail.com
mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
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(CDSL) to provide the facility of remote electronic voting (‘Remote E-Voting’) in respect of the Resolutions proposed 
at this AGM. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr.P.Sriram, Practicing Company Secretary 
(Membership no.: 4862 & COP: 3310), Partner, SPNP & Associates as the Scrutinizer for this purpose.

15.	 The Scrutinizer will scrutinize the votes cast at the Meeting and votes cast through remote e-voting and make 
a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same to the Chairman. The result declared along with the 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report will be placed on the website of the Company: https://binnylimited.in/ and on 
the website of CDSL at: https://evotingindia.com. The result will simultaneously be communicated to the stock 
exchange.

16. 	 The register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice will be available for inspection 
in the Registered Office of the Company. Members can send an email for this purpose to binny@binnyltd.in

17. 	 Registration of e-mail address: In terms of the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company has sent the Annual Report, 
Notice of e-AGM and e-Voting instructions only in electronic form to the registered email addresses of the 
shareholders. Therefore, those shareholders who have not yet registered their email address are requested to get 
their e-mail addresses registered by following the procedure given below:

a) 	 Those shareholders who have registered/not registered their mail address and mobile no. including address and 
bank details may please contact and validate/update their details with their Depository Participant in case of shares 
held in electronic form and with the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s. Cameo Corporate Services 
Limited in case the shares are held in physical form.

b) 	 Shareholders who have not registered their email address and in consequence thereof, the Annual Report, Notice 
of e-AGM and e-voting Notice could not be served, may temporarily get their e-mail address and mobile number 
provided with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Cameo Corporate Services Limited, by writing 
an email to investor@cameoindia.com providing their email address and mobile number for sending the soft copy 
of the Notice and e-voting instructions along with the User ID and password. In case of any queries, shareholders 
may write to investor@cameoindia.com

c) 	 Shareholders may also visit the website of the Company www.binnylimited.in or the website of the Registrar and 
Transfer Agent www.cameoindia.com for downloading the Annual Report and Notice of the AGM. 

d) 	 Alternatively, Shareholders may send an e-mail request at the email id investor@cameoindia.com along with 
scanned signed copy of the request letter providing the email address, mobile number, self-attested PAN copy and 
Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy of share certificate in case of physical folio for sending 
electronically the Annual report, Notice of AGM and the e-voting instructions.

THE PROCEDURE AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE, AS FOLLOWS: 

1.	 The remote e-voting will commence on Sunday,December 28,2025 at 9 a.m. and will end on Tuesday, December 
30, 2025 at 5 p.m. During this period, the members having shares either in physical mode or in demat mode as on 

able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled for voting by CDSL thereafter. 

2.	 Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or 
cast the vote again. 

3.	 The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the Cut-off /record date Friday,December 05, 2025

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

the Cut-off date/record date i.e.24th December, 2025 may   cast their vote  electronically. The members will not be
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5.	 Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in Demat mode 
with CDSL

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/Easiest facility, can log in through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New 
System Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where thee-Voting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the e-Voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/ Registration/Easi Registration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a e- Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system 
of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ IdeasDirectReg.jsp Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl. com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on 
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through 
their Depository 
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/%20IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/%20IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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	 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. or contact at

022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(i) 	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding 
in demat form & physical shareholders.

1. 	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

2. 	 Click on ‘Shareholders’ module.

3. 	 Now Enter your User ID

	 a.   For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

	 b.   For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

	 c.   Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4. 	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5. 	 If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 6. voted on an 
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and for Members holding shares 
in physical form

PAN Enter your 10 digital alpha-numeric* PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 
Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 
use the sequence number sent by the Company / RTA in the PAN field or contact the Company/RTA.

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number 
after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
sequence number 1then enter RA00000001inthePANField.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your Demat account or in the company 
records in order to login.

(ii) 	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(iii) 	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the Demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
www.evotingindia.com
www.evotingindia.com
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(iv) 	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice.

(v) 	 Click on the EVSN of Binny Limited

(vi) 	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 
voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(vii) 	Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(viii) 	After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

(ix) 	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(x) 	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xi) 	 If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image verification code 
and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xii)	 Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – Remote Voting only

- 	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the ‘Corporates’ module.

-	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

-	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance user would be able to link the depository account(s) / folio numbers on which they wish to 
vote.

-	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

-	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

	 Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; binny@binnyltd.in & cs@binnyltd.in, if they have voted 
from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/ 
DEPOSITORIES 

1. 	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2.	 For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP)

3. 	 For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal 
Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or call at toll free no. 1800 21 09911.

www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:binny@binnyltd.in
mailto:cs@binnyltd.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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THE PROCEDURE AND INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE VOTING THROUGH THE E-VOTING SYSTEM (VENUE VOTING) 
ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS FOLLOWS:

(i) 	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote 
e-voting.

(ii) 	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

(iii) 	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders 
have not participated in the meeting through VC/ OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting through VC/OAVM facility.

(iv)	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM, however, they will not 
be eligible to vote at the AGM.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC) OR 
OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (OAVM):

1.	 The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 
for e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

4.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

5.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

6.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions on the items of business to be transacted at the 
AGM, during the AGM, may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance mentioning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number to binny@binnyltd.in and cs@binnyltd.
in. The Speaker registration shall commence from Friday, the December 26,2025, at 9 A.M. and shall close on 
Monday, the December 29, 2025 by 05:00 PM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 
depending on the availability of time for the AGM. Few days before closing is better because we have to prepare 
speaker list and to be given to CDSL. 

7.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the AGM.

8.	 The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance, 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number to cs@binnyltd.in and 
binny@binnyltd.in

9.	 The queries shall be sent during the period commencing from Friday, the December 26,2025, at 9 A.M. and shall 
close on Monday, the December 29, 2025 at 05:00 PM. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably 
by email or will be discussed during the meeting.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

1.	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022- 23058542/43.

2.	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal 
Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

mailto:binny@binnyltd.in
mailto:cs@binnyltd.in
mailto:cs@binnyltd.in
mailto:cs@binnyltd.in
mailto:binny@binnyltd.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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3.	 You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communication.

4.	 The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date/record date.

5.	 For the purpose of ensuring that members who have cast their votes through remote e-voting do not vote again 
during the Annual General Meeting, the scrutinizer shall have access, after the closure of period for remote e-voting 
and before the start of the AGM the details relating to members, such as their names, folios, number of shares held 
and such other information that the scrutinizer may require, who have cast votes through remote e-voting but not 
the manner in which they have cast their votes.

6.	 The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General Meeting, first count the 
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than two working days of conclusion of the 
meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman who 
shall countersign the same. The Chairman shall declare the result of the voting forth with.

7.	 The results declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be placed on the Company’s website https://
binnylimited.in/ and on the website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman. The results 
shall also simultaneously be forwarded to the BSE which shall place the results on its website.

					  
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For BINNY LIMITED

SATHYANARAYANAN BALAKRISHNAN
 WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR

DATE: 04 DECEMBER, 2025
PLACE: CHENNAI

https://binnylimited.in
https://binnylimited.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
The following Explanatory Statement, as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act’) and the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations’), each as amended, sets 
out all material facts relating to the business(es) to be dealt at the AGM.

ITEM No.1:

Delay in Adoption of accounts:

As the shareholders are aware, the AGM for the Financial Year 2024 ought to have been held on or before 30th September 
2024. Shareholders are hereby informed that, due to various legal disputes, the Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the 
financial year 2023-24, which was originally required to be held on or before 30th September 2024 in accordance with 
statutory guidelines, could not be convened within the stipulated timeframe. 

However, the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year 31.3.2024 could not be placed before the shareholders 
for adoption within the stipulated time for the following reasons:

a)	 Changes in composition of Board: On 30th April 2024, the Board cancelled the appointment of Mr. Arvind 
Nandagopal as Managing Director / Director. The Independent director and the audit committee chairman Mr. 
Rajeev Bakshi was given show cause notice for his disqualification. Mr. T. Krishnamurthy Director (Finance) & 
Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) was asked to step down from his position, causing a big vacuum in the Management 
and Head of Finance Department. The new CFO was appointed on May 14, 2024 and all the committees were 
re-constituted on the same day. The existing CFO Mr. T. Krishnamurthy and an independent director Mr. Rajeev 
Bakshi removed from their position.

b)	 Disputes in brief. Following a SEBI order on 31st July, 2024, the Company’s Executive Chairman Mr. M. Nandagopal, 
Managing Director Mr. Arvind Nandagopal and Director (Finance) & CFO Mr. T. Krishnamurthy were restricted 
from serving as directors, prompting their resignations. Additionally, the disqualification of two Independent 
Directors resulted in the Board falling below the minimum number of directors required under Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. Consequently, the Company approached the Hon’ble 
High Court of Madras seeking the appointment of an administrator to facilitate the reconstitution of the Board. 
Pursuant to this, the Hon’ble High Court of Madras, through its Order No. CMP. No. 24465/2024 in OSA No. 
116/2024 dated November 11, 2024, appointed Hon’ble Justice M. Sathyanarayanan (Retired)of the High Court of 
Madras, as Administrator to oversee the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the shareholders for the purpose 
of reconstituting the Board.

	 Pursuant to the Hon’ble High Court’s direction, the EGM was convened on January 4, 2025, during which the 
following individuals were duly appointed as Directors of the Company:

S.NO NAME OF THE DIRECTOR DESIGNATION

1 James Richard Williams Director

2 Nutrajan Ramesh Director

3 Nilima Sathyanarayanan Director

4 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan Whole-time Director

5 Natrajan Prasanna Director

6 Shankaran Sundar Raman Independent Director

	 However, due to the earlier lack of functional and recognized signatories in the Company’s Master Data on the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) portal, we were unable to file Form DIR-12 electronically for the appointment 
of the above Directors. As this form is a prerequisite for updating the Board composition on MCA records, we 
were consequently restricted from filing any further e-forms, including the application for appeal. Subsequently, 
with assistance from the MCA’s support team, we have successfully updated the MCA records by inducting Mr. 
Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan, Whole-time Director into the Company’s Master Data.

S.NO
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c)	 Post appointment of Directors, the newly inducted Board has appointed Mr. Ramamurthy Natarajan, Mr. Ramaswamy 
Subramanian, Mr. Natarajan Kumaraguru with effect from 23rd January 2025 and Mr. Shankaran Sundar Raman 
as Independent directors with effect from 10th January 2025 and Mr. Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan as whole time 
director with effect from 08th January 2025.

d)	 Mr. Natarajan Prasanna, Director has resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from 24th April, 2025 
consequent to the relinquishment of shareholding in the Company.

e)	 The newly constituted board then started initiating the audit process, resolving various issues with income tax, GST, 
issues with the Joint Venture partner M/s.SPR Construction Private Limited. 

Item No: 3

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“the Act”), every listed company is 
required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Company Secretary in Practice, to its Board’s Report, prepared 
under Section 134(3) of the Act. Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, every listed entity is required to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its 
annual report. Additionally, a listed entity is required to appoint a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice as 
Secretarial Auditor, with shareholder approval to be obtained at the AGM. Accordingly, based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of M/s. RLS & Associates, Company 
Secretary in Practice as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of one year (Financial Year 2023-24), subject 
to approval of the shareholders at the AGM.

M/s. RLS & Associates, a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice (Peer view No.2491/2022 and Certificate 
of Practice No. 17498) is a well-known Company Secretary in Practice based in Chennai focussed on providing 
comprehensive professional services.

M/s. RLS & Associates has provided his consent to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and has confirmed 
that the proposed appointment will be in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders is sought for the appointment of M/s. RLS & Associates as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company, for period of one year (Financial Year 2023-24). 

The Board of Directors recommends the ordinary resolution for approval by the Members, as set out at Item No. 3 of 
the Notice. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives have any financial or other interest in the 
proposed resolution.

Item No: 4

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) (“the Act”), every listed company is 
required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Company Secretary in Practice, to its Board’s Report, prepared 
under Section 134(3) of the Act. Furthermore, pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, every listed entity is required to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its 
annual report. Additionally, a listed entity is required to appoint a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice as 
Secretarial Auditor, with shareholder approval to be obtained at the AGM. Accordingly, based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the appointment of M/s. RLS & Associates, Company 
Secretary in Practice as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of one year (Financial Year 2024-25), subject 
to approval of the shareholders at the AGM.

M/s. RLS & Associates, a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice (Peer view No.2491/2022 and Certificate 
of Practice No. 17498) is a well-known Company Secretary in Practice based in Chennai focussed on providing 
comprehensive professional services.

M/s. RLS & Associates has provided his consent to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and has confirmed 
that the proposed appointment will be in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

s.SPR
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Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders is sought for the appointment of M/s. RLS & Associates as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company, for period of one year (Financial Year 2024-25). 

The Board of Directors recommends the ordinary resolution for approval by the Members, as set out at Item No. 4 of 
the Notice. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or their relatives have any financial or other interest in the 
proposed resolution.

Retirement by Rotation of Directors:

Status of the Management of the Company during the Financial year 2023-2024

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31,2024 is as follows:

S. NO DIN/PAN NAME DESIGNATION DATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 00058710 Masilamani Nandagopal Managing Director 23/03/1996

2 02661966 Thangavel Krishnamurthy Whole-time director 04/09/2021

3 00032253 Rajeev Bakshi Additional Director 05/02/2024

4 10550658 Jamuna Additional Director 05/02/2024

Based on the aforementioned list, the status of the Directors is as follows:

1)	 Mr. Masilamani Nandagopal was restricted by SEBI vide order dated 31.07.2024 from being associated with any 
listed company or a SEBI registered intermediary in any capacity including as a director or a key managerial person, 
directly or indirectly for 3 years. He resigned from the Board with effect from 31st July, 2024.

2)	 Mr. T. Krishnamurthy was restricted by SEBI vide order dated 31.07.2024 from being associated with any listed 
company or a SEBI registered intermediary in any capacity including as a director or a key managerial person, 
directly or indirectly for 3 years. He resigned from the Board with effect from 31st July, 2024.

3)	 Mr. Rajeev Bakshi was appointed as Independent Director on 5th Feb, 2024 subsequently ratified by the Shareholders 
in the EGM.

	 However, a show cause notice was issued to him questioning the pecuniary business relationship he has with 
the Company and thereby it attracts disqualification u/s 149(6). Also it is observed that there is no declaration of 
independence filed by him before the Board. 

	 It was also noted that name of Mr. Rajeev Bakshi has not been available in the data bank as required under 
section 150 of the Companies Act for being eligible to be appointed as Independent Director. He was removed as 
Independent Director by the Board on 14th May, 2024.

4)	 Ms. Jamuna was appointed even before getting a Valid DIN which is a pre-requisite for getting appointment as 
Director in the Company. Further, she was appointed in the capacity of Independent Director.

	 In light of the foregoing, it is evident that none of the Directors who held office as on the closure of the financial 
year 2023–2024 continue to be associated with the Board. Consequently, no Director is liable to retire by rotation 
at the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2023–2024.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the Fifty fifth (55th) Annual Report on the business and operations of 
your company together with Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31st March 2024 and the Auditors’ 
report thereon.

HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year

2023-24 2022-23

Revenue 7,716.41 15,441.17

Expenditure 10,325.89 5157.25

Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation & Tax (2,609.48) 10,283.92

Depreciation 91.76 428.33

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional item and tax (2,701.24) 9,855.59

Exceptional item - -

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (2,701.24) 9,855.59

Tax (277.39) 3,917.50

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (2,423.85) 5,938.10

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 1,140.84 1,444.79

Total comprehensive income (1,283.01) 7,382.89

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

The revenue from operations consists of the revenue recognized under the Second Amended and reinstated Joint 
Development Agreement (JDA) dated 06.08.2025 to the tune ` 3418.82 lakhs.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD:

a)	� On 30th April 2024, the Board cancelled the appointment of Mr. Arvind Nandagopal as Managing Director / Director. 
The Independent director and the Audit Committee Chairman Mr. Rajeev Bakshi was given Show Cause notice for 
his disqualification. Mr. T. Krishnamurthy Director (Finance) & Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) was asked to step 
down from his position, causing a big vacuum in the Management and the Finance Department. A new CFO 
was appointed on May 14, 2024 and all the committees were re-constituted on the same day. The existing CFO  
Mr. T. Krishnamurthy and an independent director Mr. Rajeev Bakshi removed from their position.

b)	� Following a SEBI order on 31st July, 2024, the Company’s Executive Chairman Mr. M. Nandagopal, Managing 
Director Mr. Arvind Nandgopal, Director (Finance) & CFO Mr. T. Krishnamurthy were restricted from serving as 
directors, prompting their resignations. Additionally, the disqualification of two Independent Directors resulted in the 
Board falling below the minimum number of directors required under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. Consequently, the Company approached the Hon’ble High Court of Madras seeking 
directions for the appointment of an Administrator to facilitate the reconstitution of the Board. Pursuant to this, the 
Hon’ble High Court of Madras, through its Order No. CMP. No. 24465/2024 in OSA No. 116/2024 dated November 
11, 2024, appointed Hon’ble Justice M. Sathyanarayanan (Retired) of the High Court of Madras, as Administrator / 
Chairman to oversee the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the shareholders for the purpose of reconstituting 
the Board.
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	� Pursuant to the Hon’ble High Court’s direction, an EGM was convened on January 4, 2025, during which the 
following individuals were duly appointed as Directors of the Company:

S.NO NAME OF THE DIRECTOR DESIGNATION

1 James Richard Williams Director

2 Nutrajan Ramesh Director

3 Nilima Sathyanarayanan Director

4 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan Whole-time Director

5 Natrajan Prasanna Director

6 Shankaran Sundar Raman Independent Director

c)	� Post appointment of Directors, the newly inducted Board has appointed Mr. Ramamurthy Natarajan, Mr. Ramaswamy 
Subramanian, Mr. Natarajan Kumaraguru with effect from 23rd January 2025 and Mr. Shankaran Sundar Raman as 
independent directors with effect from 10th January 2025 and Mr. Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan as Whole Time 
Director with effect from 08th January 2025.

d)	� Mr. Natarajan Prasanna, Director has resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from 24th April, 2025 
consequent to the relinquishment of shareholding in the Company.

e)	� The newly Constituted Board then started initiating the audit process, resolving various issues with Income tax, GST 
and mainly issues with the Joint Venture partner M/s.SPR Construction Private Limited. 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (JDA) WITH M/S SPR CONSTRUCTION PVT. LTD.

During the financial year 2023, an accounting-related dispute had arisen between your Company and its joint development 
partner, SPR Construction Private Limited. Owing to the non-settlement of certain issues, the joint development partner 
invoked Arbitration proceedings and filed a petition under Section 9 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 before 
the Hon’ble High Court of Madras, pursuant to which the Arbitrators were appointed and the arbitration proceedings 
were in progress.

Subsequently, during the year, based on the directions and actions taken by the new Board of Directors appointed by the 
Hon’ble High Court of Madras, a Special Committee was constituted under the Chairmanship of Hon’ble Retired Justice 
Bhaskar. The said Committee appointed two independent and reputed IBBI-empanelled valuers to determine the basis 
for settlement through appropriate valuation mechanisms, including the option of area sharing for future developments.

Accordingly, the Special Committee convened several meetings on various dates and finalised the scope of valuation. It 
was decided that the settlement would be structured as follows:

•	 �Revenue Sharing Method for a portion of the project measuring approximately 53.18 lakh square feet of saleable area 
out of the total 120 lakh square feet; and

•	 Area Sharing Mechanism for the balance portion of the area proposed to be developed.

For the purpose of arriving at the settlement value in respect of the 53.18 lakh square feet, the valuers were specifically 
entrusted with the task of projecting future cash flows and determining the appropriate settlement value using established 
valuation methodologies, including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method. The valuers submitted a detailed and 
comprehensive valuation report based on these parameters.

Based on the findings and recommendations contained in the valuation report and after due deliberation, your Board of 
Directors approved the settlement framework as recommended by the Special Committee.

Pursuant to the approval of the settlement framework by the Board of Directors, a Revised Joint Development Agreement 
was duly executed on 06th August 2025 after getting the approval of the Shareholders under section 180 of the Companies 
Act,2013, incorporating the terms of compromise mutually agreed upon between the Company, Binny Limited, and SPR 
Construction Private Limited. Consequent to the execution of the revised agreement, the arbitration proceedings stood 
fully and finally settled, resulting in the complete closure of the arbitration tribunal and all connected legal proceedings.

S.NO
s.SPR
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Your Board of Directors is pleased to state that post-closure of the arbitration proceedings, the operations relating to 
the project have normalised in all respects. The relationship between the parties is now cordial, cooperative, and 
progressive, and the project activities have regained momentum and are being carried forward smoothly in accordance 
with the revised development framework.

Key Terms of the Second Amended & Reinstated JDA:

The revised JDA provides that up to 53.18 lakh sq. ft. of saleable area will be settled through a lump sum payment, after 
adjusting all prior payments made under the original JDA.

The balance saleable area, out of a total contemplated 120 lakh sq. ft. (including Premium FSI) will be developed under 
an area sharing model. 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (JDA) WITH M/S OSIAN CONSTRUCTION PVT.LTD

In respect of one of the land parcels of 12.43 acres land at Valasaravakkam taken over by the Company from M/s Mohan 
Breweries and Distilleries Limited (MBDL) under the Scheme of Settlement, the Company proposes to enter into a Joint 
Development Agreement (“JDA”) with M/s. Osian Construction Private Limited, Chennai for developing the same into 
a residential complex. The revenue from the project is estimated at ` 1486 crores of which the Company’s share works 
out about ` 693 crores.

For the above JDA the draft Term Sheet was already approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 01st 
September, 2025

Now the draft JDA as per the approved Term sheet has been prepared and the same has been approved by the Board at 
the Board meeting held on 04.12.2025 subject to the approval of the shareholders under Sec 180 of the Companies Act 
2013. 

The valuation report obtained from an Independent Registered Valuer supports the consideration and confirms the market 
value, expected revenue from the project and the share of the Company’s revenue.

The proposed JDA is a normal commercial arrangement enabling the Company to unlock the value of its real-estate 
assets.

Key Terms:

1.	 Total Land extent : 12.43 acres

2.	 Location : Valasaravakkam

3.	 Type of Development: Stilt + 5 floors

4.	 Model: Revenue sharing.

	 A.	 Base FSI

		  Binny Limited – Land Owner: 50%

		  Osian construction Pvt. Ltd. – Developer: 50%

	 B.	 Premium FSI

		  Binny Limited – Land Owner : 27%

		  Osian construction Pvt. Ltd. – Developer: 73%

5.	 Refundable Security Deposit:

	 The Developer agrees to pay a total refundable security deposit of ` 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores only).

6.	 Expected cash flow:

	 Total estimated revenue during the Project period: `1486 cr.

	 Binny’s estimated Share of revenue: `693 cr.

APPEAL BEFORE SECURITIES APPELLATE TRIBUNAL (SAT) AGAINST SEBI ORDER AND ITS STATUS:

A Scheme of Settlement was entered into by the Company with Mohan Breweries & Distilleries Limited (“MBDL”) 
for recovery of its advances which were made for purchase/takeover of its certain land/assets. The Scheme was duly 
approved by the Board of Directors and the public shareholders of the Company.

PVT.LTD
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While SEBI, in-principle accepted the method and manner adopted by the Company for recovery of funds from MBDL 
under the Scheme of Settlement, it raised concerns regarding the sufficiency of documentation specifically, through 
the execution of Registered Agreements to sell and Registered General Power of Attorney. Consequently, SEBI was 
constrained to pass its Order dated 31st July 2024 rejecting the method of transferring the assets and with a direction that 
specified monies advanced in earlier years be brought back into the Company and that all related-party transactions with 
Mohan Breweries & Distilleries Limited (“MBDL”) be duly regularised and reflected in the Company’s books of account.

The Company had filed an Appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) against the said order of SEBI dated 31st July 
2024. The SAT admitted the Appeal and granted an interim stay. The hearings are in progress. In the meantime, with a 
view to settle the matter amicably and to bring an early closure, the Company has considered the said Order and wanted 
to comply with SEBI’s order with regard to method of transfer of lands from MBDL to the Company. Accordingly, the 
Company has put up a proposal to the Board to execute sale deeds for all those lands which were taken over from MBDL 
by the method of execution of Registered Agreements to sell and Registered General Power of Attorney and obtained 
Board’s approval in the Board meeting held on 01st September, 2025 for the same.

•	 �All sale deeds contemplated under the settlement have been executed, registered and duly reflected in the books of 
both Binny Limited and MBDL as listed below

	 Chengalpet Land Registration Details

Sl 
No

Sale Deed Date Doc No
Extent  

(In Acres)
 Consideration  
(including TDS) 

 TDS Deducted 

1 25-06-2025 1800/2025 18.44  23,24,78,612  23,01,768 

2 08-09-2025 2570/2025 9.43  65,65,00,569  65,00,006 

3 09-09-2025 2727/2025 31.02  48,40,60,416  47,92,677 

4 11-09-2025 P/118/2025 53.83  84,75,27,223  83,91,359 

      112.72  2,22,05,66,820  2,19,85,810 

•	 In respect of 850 (Eight Hundred and Fifty) acres of Windmill lands situated at Tirunelveli / Tuticorin districts in 
the State of Tamil Nadu taken over by the Company from Mohan Breweries & Distilleries Limited (“MBDL”) under 
the settlement referred to in the SEBI Order, the said property was sold directly by Mohan Breweries & Distilleries 
Limited (“MBDL”) and the sale consideration of ` 30.44 crores was received by Binny Limited. The receipt of such 
proceeds by the Company constitutes full and valid compliance with the settlement in respect of that asset and shall 
be deemed to be part of the implementation of the SEBI Order. The Board further notes that out of the said 850 acres 
of land, an extent of 50 acres is yet to be sold. As and when the same is sold, the Company will receive the proceeds 
from the said sale.

•	 In respect of one of the land parcels of 12.43 acres of land at Valasaravakkam taken over by the company from M/s 
Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited, under the scheme of settlement, the Company proposes to enter into a 
Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with M/s Osian Construction Private Limited, Chennai for developing into a 
residential complex.

	 For the above JDA, the Term sheet was already approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 1st 
September 2025.

	 Based on the above Term sheet, the draft JDA was prepared and approved by the Board in its Board Meeting held on 
04th December 2025 subject to the approval of the Shareholders under Sec 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.

•	 The valuation report obtained from an independent registered valuer supports the consideration and confirms that the 
transfers were effected at fair value.

	 The Company has thereby fully complied with SEBI’s directions and with the orders of the Hon’ble Securities 
Appellate Tribunal.

INVESTIGATION BY SFIO

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) ,New Delhi has ordered under section 212 (1) (a) ( c) under Companies Act,2013 
investigation by Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) into the affairs of the Company vide order dated 23rd July 
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2024. Based on the above, the SFIO then issued notice for calling information under Section 217(2) of the Companies 
Act,2013. All the Details sought by them were provided.

DIVIDEND

The Company does not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

DEPOSIT

The Company did not invite or accept any deposit during the year under review.

SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 
statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is forming 
part of the Annual Report and Accounts.

DIRECTORS:

NO RE-APPOINTMENT OF RETIRING DIRECTOR

Status of the Board of Directors during the Financial year 2023-2024

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31,2024 was as follows:

S. NO DIN/PAN NAME DESIGNATION
DATE OF 

APPOINTMENT

1 00058710 Masilamani Nandagopal Managing Director 23/03/1996

2 02661966 Thangavel Krishnamurthy Whole-time director 04/09/2021

3 00032253 Rajeev Bakshi Additional Director 05/02/2024

4 10550658 Jamuna Additional Director 05/02/2024

Based on the aforementioned list, the status of the Directors is as follows:

1)	� Mr. Masilamani Nandagopal was restricted by SEBI vide order dated 31.07.2024 from being associated with any 
listed company or a SEBI registered intermediary in any capacity including as a director or a key managerial person, 
directly or indirectly for 3 years. He resigned from the Board with effect from 31.07.2024.

2)	� Mr. T. Krishnamurthy was restricted by SEBI vide order dated 31.07.2024 from being associated with any listed 
company or a SEBI registered intermediary in any capacity including as a director or a key managerial person, 
directly or indirectly for 3 years. He resigned from the Board with effect from 31.07.2024.

3)	� Mr. Rajeev Bakshi was appointed as Independent Director on 5th Feb, 2024 subsequently ratified by the Shareholders 
through the Postal Ballot.

	� However, a show cause notice was issued to him questioning the pecuniary business relationship he has with the 
Company and thereby attracting his disqualification u/s 149(6). Also it is observed that there is no declaration of 
independence filed by him before the Board. 

	� It was also noted that name of Mr. Rajeev Bakshi has not been available in the data bank as required under section 
150 of the Companies Act for being eligible to be appointed as Independent Director. He was removed as an 
Independent Director by the Board on 14th May,2024.

4)	� Ms. Jamuna was appointed on 5th February, 2024 as an Independent Director even before getting a valid DIN which 
is a pre-requisite for seeking appointment as Director in the Company. 

	� In light of the foregoing, it is evident that none of the Directors who held office as on the closure of the financial year 
2023–2024 continue to be associated with the Board. Consequently, no Director is liable to retire by rotation at the 
Annual General Meeting held for the financial year 2023–2024.
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RESIGNATION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri. M. Nandagopal , Executive Chairman of the Company resigned with effect from 31.07.2024.

Shri. Arvind Nandagopal , Managing Director of the Company resigned with effect from 31.07.2024

Shri. T. Krishnamurthy, Director (Finance) & CFO of the Company resigned with effect from 31.07.2024

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

No employee of the Company was in receipt of Remuneration during the Financial Year 2023-24 in excess of the sum 
prescribed under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board Meetings were conducted to review the Company’s business and to discuss its strategies and plans. During 
the Year 8 (Eight) Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has the following Committees:

1) 	 Audit Committee;

2) 	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

3) 	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee and

4) 	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The details on the number of Audit Committee Meetings, Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings and Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Company held during the year along with their constitution and other details are 
provided in the report on Corporate Governance. 

During the year, all the recommendations of all the Committees were accepted by the Board.

BOARD EVALUATION

As per provision of Section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Board has carried out a performance evaluation of its own performance, the 
directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its various Committees for the financial year 2023-24.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Non-Compliance in Respect of Independent Directors – FY 2023–24

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Independent Director is required to 
furnish a declaration confirming that he or she meets the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

However, Mr. Rajiv Bakshi and Ms. Jamuna, who were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company on 5th 
February 2024 and were holding office as on 31st March 2024, did not submit the requisite declarations of independence 
to the Company.

Further, in terms of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, every Independent 
Director is required to register his/her name in the databank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute 
of Corporate Affairs (IICA) and also pass the online proficiency self-assessment test within the prescribed time period, 
unless exempted.

It is observed that both Mr. Rajiv Bakshi and Ms. Jamuna failed to:

•	 Register themselves in the Independent Directors’ databank maintained by IICA, and

•	 Comply with the requirement of passing the prescribed online proficiency examination.
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Accordingly, the above requirements under the Act and the Rules remained non-complied with during their tenure.

Subsequent to the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held for election of a new Board post January 2025, the 
Company has:

•	 Obtained the Declarations of Independence from the newly appointed Independent Directors; and

•	 �Ensured that their names are duly registered and reflected in the Independent Directors’ databank maintained by the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES: 

The Company has a familiarization programme for Independent Directors pursuant to Listing Regulations, 2015. The 
same is dealt with in the Annual Report. The Familiarization Programme is available in the website of the Company. The 
link for the same is given as 

https://binnylimited.in/

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, copy of the Annual Return of the Company is available at company’s website https://
binnylimited.in/

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy provides for appropriate composition of Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of your Company along with criteria for appointment and remuneration 
including determination of qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters as provided 
under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The remuneration paid to the Directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and as 
per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is set out in ANNEXURE-I 

The Nomination and Remuneration policy is posted on the Company’s website on the below link. https://binnylimited.in/

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions contained in Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board to the best of its 
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by it confirms that:

(a)	� in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable 
Accounting Standards and Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, have been followed and there are no material 
departures from the same;

(b)	� the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31stMarch, 
2024 and of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2024;

(c)	� the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

(e)	� the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f)	� the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

https://binnylimited.in
https://binnylimited.in
https://binnylimited.in
https://binnylimited.in
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VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has formulated and adopted a vigil mechanism for employees to report genuine concerns to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. The policy provides opportunity for employees to access in good faith, the Audit Committee, if 
they observe unethical and improper practices. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available in the website of 
the Company. The link for the same is https://binnylimited.in/

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT:

A.	 Statutory Auditors:

	� M/s.Venkatesh & CO, Chartered Accountants, Chennai bearing Firm Registration No. 004636S were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors in casual vacancy to hold office up to the conclusion of the 55th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company on such remuneration of ` 25 lakhs, exclusive of applicable taxes thereon and out of pocket expenses. 

As required under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, they have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate 
issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Statutory Auditors’ Report 

Auditors Observation: 

1.	� We draw attention to Note 3 of the standalone financial results which state that the Company pursuant to arbitration 
proceedings with one of its Joint Development Partners, subsequent to which both parties have agreed to a settlement 
supported by an amendment agreement dated 06/08/2025. As per the revised terms the Joint Development Partner 
will settle a further sum of ` 30,000 lakhs in addition to ` 62,351.95 Lakhs paid by the said partner till March 
31, 2024. This settlement is in respect of Phase I of the project including area sold upto 31.03.2024 and further 
proposed sale until the completion of Phase I. Consequent to this agreement and the change in the methodology of 
revenue sharing, the company has offered an income of ̀  3,418.68 lakhs during the current financial year as against 
the revenue of ` 11,911.45 lakhs recognisable under the earlier Joint Development agreement.

2.	� During the year, the Company has recognised full impairment provision amounting to ` 3,456.82 lakhs towards 
certain receivables, as disclosed in Note 4 of the standalone financial results. The Management has not provided 
us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the recoverability of these receivables. Consequently, we 
are unable to comment on the completeness of the said receivables or ascertain whether the impairment provision 
recognised is appropriate on the accompanying standalone financial results.

3.	� The Company has advanced in the earlier years ` 2,918.05 Lakhs to RRB Energy Limited in respect of which 
the company has not provided us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the recoverability of the 
amount. Further no confirmation of balance has been provided to us. No impairment has been considered in these 
accompanying standalone financial results

4.	� We draw attention to Note 6C of the standalone financial results that as part of the settlement of advances given to 
a related party, the Company has received certain parcels of land pursuant to a sale agreement. Of these parcels 
of land, a portion amounting to ` 26,765.00 lakhs has not been registered and no sale deed has been executed to 
evidence the legal transfer of title in respect of this land. The Company has recognised these unregistered lands also 
as Inventories in its books and hence the accounting treatment adopted by the Company does not comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards.

5.	� During the year, the Company has recorded certain expenses amounting to ` 290.54 lakhs pertaining to earlier 
financial years. The Management has not provided us with the underlying supporting vouchers for these transactions. 
In the absence of such primary records, we have been unable to verify the nature, accuracy, period of occurrence, 
or completeness of these transactions. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the correctness of the amounts 
recorded, the appropriateness of recognising these items in the current financial year, or the consequential impact, 
if any, on the accompanying standalone financial results

6.	� During the year, the Company has recorded certain expenses amounting to ` 325.28 lakhs pertaining to earlier 
financial years. We are unable to comment on the correctness and appropriateness of recognising these items in the 
current financial year, or the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying standalone financial results. 

7.	� We draw attention to Note 5 of the standalone financial results which states that the Company has entered into a 
settlement agreement with a related party whereby certain assets are to be transferred in settlement of advances 
previously given by the Company. In respect of assets other than land transferred for a value of ` 3,643.66 lakhs 

https://binnylimited.in
s.Venkatesh
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under this arrangement, the Company has recognised an impairment loss of ` 1819.21 lakhs after providing 
depreciation of ` 430.70 lakhs (for the FY 2022-23 and 2023-24). Consequently, we are unable to comment on 
the appropriateness with respect to the settlement of these advances and the resultant impact on the accompanying 
standalone financial result.

8.	� With respect to Sale Agreement between the Company and M/s Sanklecha Infra Projects Private Ltd, the company 
has not recognised revenue in the earlier financial years in accordance with provisions of Ind AS 115. As per the 
Sale Agreement between the Company and M/s Sankhlecha Infra Projects Private Ltd, possession of the land was 
handed over to the said party on the basis of registered power of attorney and the latter completed the construction 
activities whereby a sum of ` 1,912 lakhs is receivable on account of the same. Further the value of inventory 
includes the sum relating to the cost of this land which is not ascertainable. In view of the above, we are unable to 
comment on the completeness and appropriateness of the recognition of revenue, compliance with provisions of 
Indian Accounting Standard 115. Further no confirmation of balance has been made available to us, hence we are 
unable to comment on the correctness and recoverability of the receivable balance in the accompanying standalone 
financial results.

9.	� With reference to the Joint Development Agreement with SPR Construction Private Limited, revenue from the 
operation of school at 40% share ought to have been recognised the Company, however no revenue has been 
recognised in the accompanying Standalone financial results. We are unable to comment on the completeness of 
the revenue and the corresponding receivable thereon on account of this transaction.

Management response: 

1.	� The settlement under the Joint Development Agreement was arrived at through a Special Committee appointed by the 
Board of the Company. The Special committee was headed by Hon’ble Retired Justice Bhaskar. The said Committee 
appointed two independent valuers to carry out a comprehensive valuation exercise. The valuers examined the 
entire development area of the project and bifurcated the settlement into two components, namely:

	 a.	� Up to 53.18 lakh sq. ft. of saleable area will be settled through a lump sum payment, after adjusting all prior 
payments made under the original JDA. (Phase I)

	 b.	� The balance saleable area, out of a total contemplated 120 lakh sq. ft. (including Premium FSD) will be developed 
under an Area sharing model. (Phase II)

		�  With respect to the Phase-I development and the revenue realizable therefrom, the valuers have taken into 
consideration the projected revenues that would accrue over the forthcoming years and have arrived at the 
valuation by discounting the future cash flows to their present value using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) 
method.

		�  Accordingly, the figure of ` 30,000 lakhs has been arrived at based on the present value of the future revenues, 
duly discounted to today’s value. Therefore, the correct comparison is between the present value figure of  
` 11,911.45 lakhs and the gross projected figure of ` 30,000 lakhs, and not a direct comparison of ` 11,911.45 
lakhs with ` 3,418.68 lakhs without considering the time value of money.

		�  In light of the above, the valuation report clearly bases the settlement on the present value of future cash flows, 
and we have merely submitted the same as determined by the independent valuers. 

2.	� The Company has already initiated necessary measures, including legal proceedings, to recover the outstanding 
amount of ` 3,456.82 lakhs. Management firmly believes that the entire sum is recoverable and remains confident 
of a favourable outcome. However in line with prudent accounting practices, the Company has recognized an 
impairment provision for the full amount in the financial statements. This provision is purely precautionary and does 
not reflect any diminution in the Company’s assets.

3.	� The Company has already initiated legal action under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) for recovery of  
` 2,918.05 lakhs along with simple interest at 24% per annum, aggregating to ` 6,061.05 lakhs. M/s RRB has issued 
a confirmation of balance for the principal amount by its letter dated 17th July 2021. Although the confirmation letter 
has crossed the limitation period, M/s RRB has consistently disclosed this liability to M/s Binny Limited in its audited 
financial statements, including for the year ended 31.03.2025. Such disclosures constitute a legal acknowledgment 
of debt and provide sufficient evidence in the on-going legal proceedings.
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	� Management firmly believes that the entire outstanding amount of ` 2,918.05 lakhs is fully recoverable from  
M/s RRB.

4.	� In respect of the 12.43 acres of land at Valasaravakkam, taken over by the Company from M/s Mohan Breweries and 
Distilleries Limited (MBDL) under the Scheme of Settlement, the Company proposes to develop it into a residential 
complex on Joint Development model (JDA) instead of monetizing it as selling as land. This does not warrant 
execution of Sale deed and a Registered Power of attorney holds good and also it is the industry practice being 
in vogue in Tamil Nadu in the real estate market. However to evidence the legal transfer of land, the Company 
proposes to go for registration of Joint development Agreement (JDA) though the registration of JDA is not mandatory 
in Tamil Nadu under applicable laws. 

5.	� The expenses of ` 290.44 lakhs recorded this year relate to expenses from prior periods. The Company has relied 
on supporting records and approvals to confirm their legitimacy. Management affirms that recognition of these 
expenses is appropriate and has no adverse impact on the Company’s financial position.

6.	� The amount of ` 325.28 lakhs represents the Company share of 40% of the expenses incurred by the developer 
towards Smart City development, in line with the Joint Development Agreement (JDA) terms and sale price strategy 
executed by both Company and developer in writing. The Company has not recognized its share of these expenses 
in the previous year due to Arbitration litigation with developer and recognised during this financial year under 
the head prior period expenses in the books. These expenses are completely supported by invoices raised by 
the developer along with actual supporting and bills. Management affirms that recognition of these expenses is 
appropriate.

7.	� With a view to unlock the value of Distillery land for real estate developments to create wealth for the Company 
and shareholders, Company has recognised a onetime impairment loss of ̀  1819.21 lakhs. The Management wish to 
state that the advances have been duly settled as per the scheme of settlement entered into with MBDL, as approved 
by the shareholders on 04th October 2021. 

8.	� M/s Sanklecha Infra projects Private Limited has obligation to pay the balance consideration of ` 1912.00 lakhs and 
accordingly the revenue has not been recognised as per the provisions of Indian Accounting Standards 115. The 
Management wishes to state that immediately upon the receipt of balance consideration of ` 1912.00 lakhs, the sale 
deed will be executed and the revenue will be recognised.

9.	� The operation of the School was not part of the JDA project at Perambur and hence no revenue accrued from the 
operation of the school to the project. Only the land area meant for putting up the school was leased out by a 
registered lease deed to a third party M/s SPR Gurukul Trust and they had commenced operations of the school 
in collaboration with Shri Educare Group from Delhi who are known to setup distinguished educational institutes 
like Lady Shriram College, New Delhi. The School stands as testimony to the Company’s promise of improving the 
overall quality of life of the residence of the Project and surrounding general public. We foresee higher customer 
confidence on the vision of project which will reflect in form of higher and faster sales. 

	� In any case, under the Reinstated and Second amended JDA 2025, the school asset has gone to the share of 
developer and the Company has no claim or rights on the revenue arising from the school operations.

B.	 Cost Auditors:

	� As the Company is not covered under the ambit of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the requirement for maintenance of cost records and appointment of Cost 
Auditor does not arise.

C.	 Secretarial Auditor:

	� Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 Shri.Sarangi Rajib, Partner of RLA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing 
Company Secretary has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as ANNEXURE II to 
this report. 

Shri.Sarangi
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	 Management Response to observations / remarks in Secretarial Audit Report 2023-24

Remarks/ Observations Management Response

1.	� During the financial year 2023–24, the 
Company has not submitted its financial results 
and financial statements in XBRL format under 
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, under the ‘Integrated Financials’ section 
on the stock exchange portal.

The Company has filed the financial results in XBRL format 
as per Regulations 33, however, it has not been filed under 
the Integrated Financial section of the Stock Exchange porta. 
The Company is streamlining all the financial results and 
statements in XBRL format under the Integrated Financial 
section on the Stock Exchange portal.

2.	� The Company has not convened its Annual 
General Meetings on or before 30.09.2024.

Due to legal disputes and SEBI Order dated July 31, 2024, 
there was complete vacuum in the Board during September 
2024. As per the Hon’ble Madras High Court Order dated 
November 11, 2024, a new Board was formed under 
the Court appointed Administrator Retd Justice Mr. M. 
Sathyanarayanan. Due to these legal issues, the Company 
was unable to conduct its AGM on or before Sept 30, 2024.

3.	� During the year 2023-24, the Company had 
many litigations and a case has been filed with 
SEBI in the year 2021 for financial irregularities 
for the years from 2013-14 to 2020-21 which 
finally passed the order on 31st July 2024.  
So for the year 2023-24 Board of Directors 
were not duly constituted and the statutory 
committees which resulted in violation of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations 2015.

As per the Hon’ble Madras High Court Order dated 
November 11, 2024, a new Board was formed under 
the Court appointed Administrator Retd Justice Mr. M. 
Sathyanarayanan on January 04, 2025. After the constitution 
of the new Board, there was a duly constituted Board in the 
Company and all statutory committees were formed. 

Details of delayed Stock Exchange filings during the year:

a.	� Shareholding pattern for the quarter ended 
31.12.2023 & 31.03.2024 filed after due date.

Due to the Legal disputes the company was unable to ensure 
Compliance. The same will be regularised

b.	� The Company has filed Unaudited Financial 
Results for the Quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 
30.09.2023 after due date.

Due to the Legal disputes the company was unable to ensure 
Compliance. The same will be regularised

Management Response to observations remarks in Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 2023-24

31 Maintenance and disclosures on Website:

	�The listed entity is maintaining a 
functional website.

	�Timely dissemination of the documents/ 
information under a separate section on 
the website.

	�Web-links provided in annual corporate 
governance reports under

Regulation 27(2) are accurate and specific 
which redirects to the relevant document(s)/
section of the website.

Yes, but all 
information 
are not 
updated in 
website

The Company 
has not updated 
its website 
properly. 

The Company is in the 
process of streamlining 
all Stock Exchange 
related compliances. A 
new website is already 
functional.

	 Reporting of fraud

	 The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Act, 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT:

The Company has complied with requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. A report on the Corporate Governance practices, the Auditors’ Certificate on compliance of mandatory requirements 
thereof is given as an annexure to the Report as ANNEXURE III.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Notes to the 
Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The company has formulated and laid down procedures about the risk assessment and risk management procedures. These 
procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that risks are managed / mitigated through a well-defined framework.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company, to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is disclosed in Form No. AOC- 2 as ANNEXURE-IV 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company is maintaining adequate and effective Internal Financial Control (IFC) over Financial Reporting (FR) based 
on Guidance notes on Audit for Internal financial Control over financial reporting, for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to its policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. Apart from Internal Auditors, who review all the financial transactions and operating systems, the 
Company has also in place adequate Internal Financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. During the year, 
such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 
required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is as follows:

Conservation of Energy

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

During the year NIL2. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment

Technology Absorption

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption

During the year NIL

2. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development 
or import substitution

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year) (a) the details of technology imported, (b) the year 
of import, (c) whether the technology been fully absorbed, (d) if not fully absorbed, 
areas where absorption hasn’t taken place, and the reasons thereof

4. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange earned: Nil

Foreign Exchange used: Nil

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The Company has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during the year to take decisions on CSR 
activities.

SCOPE OF CSR POLICY

This policy will apply to all projects/ programmes undertaken as part of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility 
and will be developed, reviewed and updated periodically with reference to relevant changes in Corporate Governance, 
statutory requirements and sustainable and innovative practices. The policy will maintain compliance and alignment 
with the activities listed in Schedule VII and Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

CSR POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

The Company shall undertake CSR Project/ programmes identified by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors in line with the CSR policy.

The CSR Policy of the Company is uploaded in the website of the Company, https://binnylimited.in/

CSR ACTIVITIES

The Company is liable to spend a sum of ̀  123 lakhs as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate 
Social Responsibility for the year ended 31st March 2024.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change of business during the financial year under review

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals that may have an impact for 
the Company as a going concern and/or company’s operations.

DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has no women employees; hence the POSH Act is not applicable to it as on that date.

During the year under review, the company has not filed any cases /received any Complaints of Sexual Harassment under 
the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013.
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							       ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For BINNY LIMITED

Chennai 						      SATHYANARAYANAN BALAKRISHNAN
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ANNEXURE - I

DETAILS PERTAINING TO COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF  
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name of the Director / KMP Designation
Ratio to Median 
Remuneration

% Increase in 
Remuneration

1 Mr.  M. Nandagopal Executive Chairman 12.24:1 Not 
Applicable

Mr. Arvind Nandagopal Managing Director 4.70:1 No Increase

Mr. T. Krishnamurthy Director (Finance) & CFO 9.30:1 No Increase

2 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year

NIL

3 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 
company

33 employees

4 The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance

Company 
Performance 
(Sales increase %)

(57.06)

Average increase 
in Remuneration

Nil

5 Comparison of the 
remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against 
the performance of the 
Company

Designation % of increase in 
remuneration

Company 
performance
(Sales in lacs)

Mr. M. Nandagopal Executive chairman Not Applicable

6304.51
Mr. Arvind Nandagopal Managing Director No increase

Mr. T. Krishnamurthy Director (Finance) & CFO No increase

Total N.A.

Variations in the market 
capitalisation of the company, 
price earnings ratio as at the 
closing date of the current 
financial year and previous 
financial year and percentage 
increase over decrease in the 
market quotations of the shares 
of the Company in comparison 
to the rate atwhich the 
Company came out with the 
last public offer in case listed 
companies

Details as on31st March 2023 2024
increase / 
decrease

No. of Shares      223,19,410     223,19410 Nil

Share price in BSERs.    254.80    145.50 (109.30)

EPS    26.61    (7.32) (33.93)

PE Ratio (based on audited 
results)

          95.75        (19.87) (115.62)

Company’s market cap  
(` in lacs)

   56,869.86     32,474.74 (24,395.12)

Note: The calculation for median remuneration and average increase in remuneration is arrived at based on permanent 
employees of the Company in the regular rolls.
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ANNEXURE - II

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
BINNY LIMITED 
No: 1, Cooks Road, Otteri, Perambur, Chennai, 
Tamil Nadu, India- 600012

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by BINNY LIMITED [Corporate Identity No. L17111TN1969PLC005736.] (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided and explanations by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) 	� The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)	� Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period) 

(v)	� The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):- 

	 (a)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

	 (b)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

	 (c)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 
and amendments from time to time; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

	 (d)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations,2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

	 (e)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

	 (f)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit 
period).

	 (g)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to 
the Company during the audit period) 
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	 (h)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the audit period) 

	 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

	 (i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

	 (ii)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for ensuring compliances under the other 
applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under various laws which are applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) during the period under review 
the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. mentioned 
above.

Our observations/remarks are as under:

1.	� During the financial year 2023–24, the Company has not submitted its financial results and financial statements in 
XBRL format under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
under the ‘Integrated Financials’ section on the stock exchange portal.

2.	� The Company has not convened its Annual General Meetings on or before 30.09.2024.

3.	� During the year 2023-24, the Company had many litigations and a case has been filed with SEBI in the year 2021 
for financial irregularities for the years from 2013-14 to 2020-21 which finally passed the order on 31st July 2024. 
So, for the year 2023-24 Board of Directors were not duly constituted and the statutory committees which resulted 
in violation of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.

4.	� The Company has not appointed full time Company Secretary after resignation of Mr. K. Senthilkumar on  
28th August, 2023.

5.	� The Company is not regular in depositing statutory dues. 

6.	� Based on SCN dated 30th June 2023 for sec 206 inspection relating to Related party advance for FY 2015-16 for 
` 140 crores advance received from MBDL for 7.07 acres of land; `183 crores advance for 12.43 acres of land 
made in contravention of the act. The department was not satisfied with the company’s reply and vide letter dated 
09-12-2019 RD directed ROC to take action. Hence sec 454 received for contravention of Sec 179 as the approval 
is required from shareholders in general meeting for this transaction. The company has written to ROC citing the 
above HC case and asked them to wait for court decision.

7.	� In the current financial year, the company has created a provision for CSR amounting to `123.00 lakhs, but same 
has not transferred to the CSR account.

8.	� Penalties imposed by Stock exchange are given below:

Sr.
No.

Compliance 
Requirement
(Regulations /

circulars/ Circular 
No. guidelines 

including Specific 
clause)

Deviations
Action 

Taken By
Fine Amount Observations Remarks 

1 Regulation 33 (Financial 
Results) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-
Submission 
of Financial 
Results for the 
year ended 31st 
March 2023 
within the due 
date.

BSE `1,77,000/- & 
`1,12,000/- 
(Including GST)

The Audited 
Financial Results 
for the year ended 
31st March,2023 is 
submitted to the BSE 
beyond the due date 
under Regulation 
33 of SEBI LODR 
Regulations,2015

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 15th 
September 
& 03rd 
October 2023 
respectively.
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Sr.
No.

Compliance 
Requirement
(Regulations /

circulars/ Circular 
No. guidelines 

including Specific 
clause)

Deviations
Action 

Taken By
Fine Amount Observations Remarks 

2 Regulation 33 (Financial 
Results) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-
Submission 
of Financial 
Results for the 
quarter ended 
30th June and 
30th September 
2023 within the 
due date.

BSE `1,71,000/- 
(Including GST)

Unaudited Financial 
Results for the 
quarter ended 
30th June and 30th 
September 2023 was 
not submitted within 
the due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 14th 
December 2023 
respectively

3 Regulation 24A 
(Secretarial Compliance 
Report) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-
Submission 
of Secretarial 
Compliance 
Report for the 
Financial Year 
ended 31st 
March 2023 
within the due 
date.

BSE `63,720/- & 
`1,82,900/- & 
`37,760/- 
(Including GST)

Secretarial 
Compliance Report 
for the financial 
year ended 31st 
March 2023 was not 
submitted within the 
due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on  
26th June, 
30th June and  
12th July,2023

	 I further report that

The following changes are occurred during  
the financial year 2023-24.

Observation on Changes

1.	 Resignation of shri Arvind Nandagopal as managing 
director of the company with effect from 19th April, 2023.

As the Board did not accept his resignation, he 
has withdrawn his resignation. 

2.	 The board has appointed Mr. D Ramesh Babu as 
president projects of the company as per the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 02nd May, 
2023.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
deferred his appointment. 

3.	 The board has appointed Shri Nate Nandha as director of 
the company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 with effect from 22nd June, 2023.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
deferred his appointment. 

4.	 Appointment of Shri M. Nandgopal (DIN: 00058710) as 
Managing Director and Executive Chairman for a period 
of 5 years with effect from 28th august, 2023. Company 
has not filed MGT-14 and DIR-12 with ROC.

Nil

5.	 Shri. K. Senthilkumar company secretary resigned from 
the company with effect from 28th August, 2023 and the 
Company has filed Form DIR-12 with ROC.

Nil

6.	 Appointment of Mrs. Shobha Natarjan as an Additional 
Director of the company with effect from 29th November, 
2023.

The Board deferred her appointment. Hence, 
there was no necessity to file the required form 
with the Registrar of Companies
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7.	 Resignation of Mrs. Nilima Sathya from the post of 
independent director, with effect from 29th November, 
2023 and filed necessary form with ROC.

Nil

8.	 Resignation of Mr. Arvind Nandagopal from the post of 
director, with effect from 27th November, 2023.

Mr. Arvind Nandagopal expressed to opt out 
of his re-appointment as director at the 54th 
Annual General Meeting held on December 
28, 2023

9.	 Appointment of M/s. Proeza Corp Private Limited, as 
internal auditors of the company for the financial year 
2023-24 with effect from 29th November, 2023

Company has not filed MGT-14 with ROC.

10.	 Appointment of Mr. Rajeev Bakshi as an independent 
director of the company with effect from 05th February, 
2024 and filed necessary form with ROC.

Nil

11.	 Appointment of Mrs. Jamuna Sounderam as an 
independent director of the company with effect from 
05th February, 2024.

Company has not filed DIR-12 with ROC.

12.	 Resignation of M/s. Sagar & Associates, Statutory auditors 
of the company with effect from 05th February, 2024

Nil

13.	 Appointment of M/s. Venkatesh & Co. as a statutory 
auditor of the company with effect from 05th February, 
2024 and filed necessary form with ROC.

Company has not filed ADT-1 with ROC

14.	 Resignation of justice S. Jagadeesan from the post of 
independent director of the company with effect from 
14th February, 2024

 Company has not filed DIR-12 with ROC.

15.	 Resignation of Dr. Major Durai Raja from the post of 
independent director of the company with effect from 
19th January, 2024.

Company has not filed DIR-12 with ROC

Adequate notice is given to all Directors before schedule of the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the consent of majority of the 
Board of Directors and there were no dissenting members views recorded in the minutes.

Details of delayed Stock Exchange filings during the year:

a.	� Shareholding pattern for the quarter ended 31.12.2023 & 31.03.2024 filed after due date.

b.	� The Company has filed Unaudited Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30.06.2023 and 30.09.2023 after due 
date.

We further report that:

1.	� The Board authorized the lease agreement with ALD Automotive Private Limited at the board meeting held on 28th 
August 2023.

2.	� The Board approved the request from a person belonging to the promoter group to reclassify from the promoter 
category to the public category at the meeting held on 29th November 2023.

3.	� The company approved the sale of 250 acres of windmill land in Panikarulam and Ayyanaroothu villages, Kayathar 
Taluk, Tuticorin District.

4.	� The Board approved the revised sale consideration for the sale of Binny New Re Energy Ltd (BNREL) to the 
Shahjahan Group, increasing it from ` 2.50 crores to ` 5.50 crores.
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5.	� In the board meeting held on 29th November 2023, the Board took note of and ratified the transaction involving the 
sale of the distillery plant as scrap.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES

PLACE: Chennai RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI
DATE: 08.12.2025
UDIN- A020312G002274212 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
M No. A20312, CP NO. 17498

ICSI Peer Review No.2491/2022

This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this 
report.

Annexure-A

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	� Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.	� I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

3.	� I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company 
since the same had been subjected to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

4.	� Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	� The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	� The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7.	� We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like Direct & Indirect tax laws 
has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and 
other designated professionals.

FOR RLS & ASSOCIATES

PLACE: Chennai RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI
DATE: 08.12.2025
UDIN- A020312G002274212

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
M No. A20312, CP NO. 17498

ICSI Peer Review No.2491/2022
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ANNEXURE - III

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

i) 	 Industry structure and developments:

Real estate development in Chennai during 2023-2024 was characterized by significant growth, especially in 
residential projects, driven by major infrastructure improvements like the Chennai Metro Phase 2 expansion and the 
development of the Pallavaram-Thuraipakkam Road. Key development areas include OMR (Old Mahabalipuram 
Road), Pallavaram, and Sholinganallur. 

Chennai’s residential real estate market has experienced significant growth in 2024, supported by robust sales 
momentum and a surge in new launches. Moreover, declining inventory was effectively balanced with an increase 
in fresh options for homebuyers.

•	 Infrastructure-Driven Growth: Major government infrastructure projects are significantly impacting real estate 
values and driving demand in connected areas.

•	 Integrated Townships/Gated Communities: The market is seeing increased demand for self-sufficient, amenity-
rich gated communities and integrated townships.

•	 As mentioned in the earlier report, the Company’s main focus is on the three land parcels in Perambur (North 
Chennai), Valasarawakkam (West Chennai) and Chingelpet (Adjoining district of Chennai (South)

Valasarawakkam

•	 The demand for both residential and commercial properties remains strong, with a variety of options available 
including apartments, villas, and plots. The area has a good mix of ready-to-move and under-construction 
projects catering to families and professionals.

•	 Chennai Market Performance: Valasaravakkam›s boom is part of a larger positive trend in the Chennai real 
estate market, which saw a 34% growth in housing sales and a 12% increase in average residential prices city-
wide in 2023. 

•	 Valasaravakkam is well-connected via major roads like Arcot Road and the Inner Ring Road, offering seamless 
access to IT and industrial zones

Perambur

The real estate outlook for Perambur in 2023-2024 (and continuing into 2025) is positive, marked by steady price 
appreciation and high demand driven by robust infrastructure development and excellent connectivity. 

Perambur is a mature locality with a good mix of residential and commercial spaces, and established amenities like 
schools, hospitals, and the popular Spectrum Mall. The presence of the Integral Coach Factory (ICF) also reinforces 
its status as a significant hub.

Homebuyers in 2023-2024 continued to prioritize suburban areas with good access to amenities and transport, a 
trend that works in Perambur’s favour.

Our Joint Development partner viz. SPR Group is developing a large-scale integrated township

•	Market of India: A large-scale, first-of-its-kind organized wholesale and retail centre will become a major trade 
hub, potentially rivalling trade centres in other countries.

•	 Integrated Lifestyle: The development includes residential towers, a 1.5 million sq. ft. mall, the Shri Ram 
Universal School, and numerous amenities, aiming to create a self-sufficient community that attracts residents 
and businesses.

•	 Infrastructure & Connectivity: Its strategic location offers excellent connectivity via road and railways, with a 
metro station planned nearby, enhancing its accessibility and property values.

•	 Employment Opportunities: The various commercial and retail projects within SPR City are expected to generate 
significant employment opportunities, further boosting the local economy
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Chinglepet

Chingleput (Chengalpattu) is poised for strong real estate growth, driven by its strategic location as an emerging 
suburb of Chennai, significant infrastructure projects, and a surge in demand for mid-end and high-end housing. 
This growth is part of a broader, robust trend in the Southern India real estate market during 2023-24. 

•	 Infrastructure Development: Chingleput is a major beneficiary of extensive infrastructure enhancements in the 
Chennai Metropolitan Area (CMA). Proposed and ongoing projects that are expected to boost its real estate appeal 
include the Chennai Metro Rail Phase 1 extension, the Chennai Peripheral Ring Road, GST Road widening, and 
new flyovers. These developments improve connectivity, making the area more attractive for residents and 
businesses.

•	 Proximity to Chennai: As a rapidly growing urban centre on the periphery of Chennai, Chinglepet serves as a 
viable alternative to the main city, attracting those seeking larger homes and a better quality of living without 
sacrificing connectivity.

•	 Industrial and Economic Hub: Chinglepet is a significant industrial and public works hub, with ongoing efforts 
by the Tamil Nadu government to attract further investments in sectors such as electronics manufacturing, R&D, 
and Global Capability Centres (GCCs). This economic activity creates job opportunities, which in turn drives 
demand for housing and commercial spaces.

•	 Residential Demand Shift:  There is a notable shift in consumer preference towards mid-end and high-end 
residential properties, a trend observed across Tamil Nadu and expected to continue in Chinglepet. Demand for 
functional homes and integrated township developments with amenities is high.

•	 Government Initiatives & Policy Support: Favourable government policies and initiatives at both the state and 
national levels, such as the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY-U) for affordable housing and the allocation of 
funds for urban development, are fostering a conducive environment for real estate growth

ii) 	 Opportunities and threats:

Chennai’s Real Estate presents several opportunities such as 

•	 Strong market growth: The market is expected to see continued growth in residential and commercial sectors, 
with projected property price increases of 5–7% by the end of 2025.

•	 Infrastructure development:  Projects like metro expansion and new expressways are creating new growth 
corridors and increasing property values in previously underdeveloped areas.

•	 Economic growth: Chennai›s status as an economic hub is fuelling demand for housing and commercial spaces, 
attracting both domestic and international interest.

•	 Diverse housing options: Opportunities exist in both the luxury and affordable housing segments, catering to 
different buyer needs.

•	 Rental market: The rental market is strong, offering high rental returns compared to property prices. 

Threats

•	 Traffic congestion: As the city expands, traffic congestion in key areas is a growing concern, which can affect 
the liveability and connectivity of properties.

•	 Natural disasters: Chennai is vulnerable to floods and cyclones, particularly in low-lying areas, making a 
thorough assessment of drainage and safety measures crucial before purchasing.

•	 Rising costs: Challenges include increasing construction costs and the need to navigate regulatory hurdles. 

iii) 	 Segment-wise or product-wise performance:

Not Applicable

iv) 	 Outlook:

The robust real estate market translated into increased lending activity and a positive outlook for bank finance 
throughout 2023 and 2024.
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•	 Increased Credit Flow: Total bank credit outstanding to the real estate sector rose to a record high in 2023. The 
total amount of housing credit in India expanded by 12.7% in 2023-24.

•	 Bank Dominance: Banks continued to dominate the housing loan market, holding a significant market share 
(around 74.5% as of March 2024). Their advantage in cost of funds and extensive reach facilitated this dominance.

•	 HFC Performance: Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) also showed healthy growth, with loan portfolios 
expanding by 13.2% in 2023-24. They are expected to maintain strong growth in the subsequent years, with the 
retail segment as a key driver.

•	 Improved Asset Quality: The asset quality for HFCs saw a sharp improvement, with gross non-performing assets 
(GNPA) decreasing significantly from a peak in March 2022 to a much lower level by March 2024, indicating 
effective risk management and a healthier market.

v) 	 Risk and concerns:

•	 Inflation and interest rates: High inflation and rising interest rates increased the cost of borrowing, making it 
more expensive to finance projects and purchase homes, and reduced overall affordability.

•	Market volatility and economic uncertainty: The unpredictable economic environment created hesitations for 
investors and buyers, impacting market confidence.

•	 Liquidity issues: Some sectors faced low liquidity and potential issues with the availability of debt, affecting both 
developers and investors. 

Operational and supply-side risks

•	 Supply chain disruptions: Ongoing disruptions impacted the availability of construction materials, leading to 
cost volatility.

•	 Labour shortage:  A shortage of skilled labour in the construction and property management sectors was a 
significant challenge.

•	 Construction costs: Volatile construction costs made it difficult to accurately underwrite new projects and added 
to development risk. 

Regulatory and legal risks

•	 Regulatory changes: Frequent and unpredictable changes in real estate regulations across different government 
levels created uncertainty and compliance challenges.

•	 Legislative risk: Potential legislative changes could impact the market and property values.

•	 Zoning and environmental issues: For land development, challenges related to zoning laws and environmental 
regulations posed significant risks

vi) 	 Internal Control system and their adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and nature of business and 
complexity of operations. Internal Auditors conduct regular audits and report to the Audit Committee, thus 
ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Control. The observations of the Internal Auditors are reviewed 
periodically on a quarterly basis and due compliances ensured. The exceptional items are reported to the Board.

vii) 	 Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

Financial performance with respect to operational performance is discussed in the main part of the Report.

viii)	 Material Developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed.

There was no significant development in Human Resources. The Company has a structured job appraisal and 
training systems and as we expand, there this robust systems and processes in place. The Industrial relations 
remained cordial throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors present Company’s report on Corporate Governance in compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the practices followed by the Company. 

The Company is committed and consistently practiced good corporate governance. The Company’s philosophy on 
Corporate Governance is compliance of matters by maintaining disclosure, transparency, accountability and aiming at 
enhancing the long-term value of all stakeholders and the Company endeavors to ensure that highest standards of ethics 
and code of conduct are met throughout the organization.

A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by SEBI in Chapter IV read with 
Schedule V of Listing Regulations is given below:

1.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

	� The Board of Directors of the Company has a combination of Executive, Non-Executive Directors & Independent 
Directors to ensure proper governance and management. The composition of the Board and category of Directors 
are as follows.

1.1	� Composition/Category of Directors/Attendance at Meetings/Directorships & Committee Memberships in other 
Companies as on March 31, 2024:

Name

Directorship Attendance 
particulars

No. of Directorship, Committee Membership/
Chairmanship in other Companies

Date of 
appointment

Directorship 
in other Listed 

Entities

Board 
Meeting

54th 
AGM

Other 
Directorship in 
Public Limited 

Company*

Committee 
Membership*

Committee 
Chairman 

Ship*

***Shri. M. Nandagopal Promoter and Executive 
Chairman

7 Yes 9 1 - 03-10-2013 Independent 
Director in 
Mohan Meakin 
Limited

**Justice S. Jagadeesan Non-executive 
&Independent 

5 No 1 - - 05-09-2007 NA

*Shri. Arvind 
Nandagopal

Promoter and Managing 
Director

1 No 5 - - 03-10-2013 NA

Shri. T. Krishnamurthy Executive & non-
independent

7 Yes 1 - - 06-09-2017 NA

**Smt. Nilima 
Sathyanarayanan

Non-executive & 
Independent

4 No 1 - - 12-02-2018 NA

**Dr. Major D. Raja Non-executive & 
Independent

5 Yes 1 - - 14.02.2022 NA

***Mr. Rajeev Bakshi Non-executive & 
Independent

2 No 05.02.2024 NA

***Mrs.Jamuna Non-executive & 
Independent

2 No 05.02.2024 NA

* Excludes directorship, Committee Memberships and Chairmanships in Binny Limited. Also excludes directorship in Private Companies, 
Foreign Companies, Companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and alternate directorships.

�*** Shri. M. Nandagopal was appointed as Managing Director and Executive chairman of the Company with effect from 03rd October,2023.

* Shri. Arvind Nandagopal was relieved from the post of Managing Director but continues as a Director of the company with effect from  
02nd October, 2023. 

Shri.Arvind Nandagopal, Non-Executive Director who retires by rotation in the 54th AGM held on 28th December,2023, opting out of  
re-appointment as Director. Hence, he ceased to be a Director with effect from 28th December,2023.

Non-executive directors did not hold any number of shares and convertible instruments in the Company.

** Smt.Nilima Sathyanarayanan, Non-Executive and Independent Director had resigned from the Board on 29.11.2023.

** Dr.Major D.Raja, Non-Executive and Independent Director had resigned from the Board on 19.01.2024

Mrs.Jamuna
Shri.Arvind
Smt.Nilima
Dr.Major
D.Raja
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***Mr.Rajeev Bakshi and Mrs.Jamuna were appointed as Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board with effect from 05th 
February,2024

**Justice S. Jagadeesan, Non-Executive and Independent Director had resigned from the Board on 14.02.2024

None of the Independent/Non-Executive Directors have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 
Company which in the judgment of the Board may affect the independence of the director except receiving sitting 
fee for attending the meetings.

The Company has received the requisite declarations from its Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
criteria of independence prescribed both under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. The Board 
at its meeting held on 29th November,2023 has taken on record the declarations received from the Independent 
Directors. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in 
the Listing Regulations and are independent of the Management.

1.2	 Board Meetings

	 During the year, Seven (07) Board Meetings of the Company were held on the following dates:

19.04.2023 02.05.2023 22.06.2023 28.08.2023 29.11.2023 05.02.2024 28.02.2024

1.3	 FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Brief details of the familiarization program for Independent Directors of the Company are uploaded on the website of 
our Company and can be accessed through the following link:http://binnyltd.in/images/policies/FAMILIARIZATION_
DIRECTORS.pdf

1.4	 SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors have identified the skills/ expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective functioning 
of the Company namely knowledge on Company’s business, policies and culture, major risks/ threats and potential 
opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates; technical/ professional skills and 
specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business and General Management, Business Strategy, Corporate 
Strategy, Governance practices, Financial Management.

�All the Directors possess skills/ expertise and competencies as stated above. Shri. M Nandagopal, Executive 
Chairman and Managing Director have an in-depth technical knowledge on the industry in which the company 
operates.

2.	 BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Board has constituted various Committees for support in discharging its responsibilities. There are four 
Committees constituted by the Board namely Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Company Secretary acts 
as the Secretary of the Committees of the Board

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee is in alignment with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations 2015. The Committee consists of three Independent Directors. The 
members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have experience in financial management.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings as and when 
necessary and the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

During the year, Three (03) Audit Committee Meetings of the Company were held on the following dates:

29.11.2023 05.02.2024 28.02.2024

Mr.Rajeev
Mrs.Jamuna
http://binnyltd.in/images/policies/FAMILIARIZATION_DIRECTORS.pdf
http://binnyltd.in/images/policies/FAMILIARIZATION_DIRECTORS.pdf
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2.1 	 Composition, name of members & Chairman, meetings held during the year and attendance at meetings:

Name of the Member Directorship in the Board 
Committee 
Membership

Number of Meeting’s 
Attended

Justice Shri. S. Jagadeesan Independent Director Chairman 01

Dr.Major D.Raja Independent Director Member 01

Shri M.Nandagopal
Executive Chairman and 
Managing Director

Member 02

Mr.Rajeev Bakshi Independent Director Chairman 02

Mrs.Jamuna Independent Director Member 02

2.2 	 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as under:

•	 �Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

•	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

•	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

•	 �Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission 
to the board for approval,with particular reference to:

(a)	� matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s report 
in terms of clause (c)of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b)	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c)	 major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

(d)	 significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

(e)	 compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(f)	 disclosure of any related party transactions;

(g)	 Qualifications if any, in the draft audit report;

•	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

•	 �Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
utilizationof proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take 
up steps in this matter;

•	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

•	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

•	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

•	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

•	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

•	 �Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 
control systems;

•	 �Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit;

Dr.Major
D.Raja
M.Nandagopal
Mr.Rajeev
Mrs.Jamuna
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•	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up there on;

•	 �Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the 
board;

•	 �Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

•	 �To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

•	 To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

•	 �Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, 
etc. of the candidate;

•	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

3.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is governed by its Policy and its composition is in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations 2015.The policy is available in the web link: http://www.binnylimited.in 

During the year, Two (02) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings of the Company were held on the 
following dates:

02.05.2023 28.08.2023

The composition of the Committee is as follows;

Name of the Member Directorship in the Board 
Committee 
Membership

Number of Meeting’s 
Attended

Justice Shri. S Jagadeesan Independent Director Chairman 02

Smt. Nilima 
Sathyanarayanan

Independent Director Member
02

Dr.Major .D.Raja Independent Director Member 02

Shri M.Nandagopal
Executive Chairman and 
Managing Director

Member 00

Mr.Rajeev Bakshi Independent Director Chairman 00

Mrs.Jamuna Independent Director Member 00

3.1	 Brief description of terms of reference:

•	 �Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees;

•	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

•	 Devising a policy on Board diversity;

•	 �Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

2015.The
http://www.binnyltd.in/policies_codes.html
Dr.Major
D.Raja
M.Nandagopal
Mr.Rajeev
Mrs.Jamuna
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3.2	 Performance evaluation criteria

In terms of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under and Part D of 
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and as per the Nomination and Remuneration policy, the Board of 
Directors has put in place a process to formally evaluate the effectiveness of the Board, its committees along with 
performance evaluation of each Director to be carried out on an annual basis.

Accordingly, the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each Director was carried out 
for the financial year 2023-24.

4.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The ability to attract and retain talented and quality resources is a significant characteristic of any successful 
organisation. The Company’s Remuneration policy formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
provides the framework for remuneration of the Board members as well as all employees including the Key 
Managerial Personnel. This policy is guided by the principles and objectives as enumerated in Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 to ensure reasonableness and sufficiency of remuneration to 
attract, retain and motivate competent resources, a clear relationship of remuneration to performance and a balance 
between rewarding short and long-term performance of the Company.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors are also paid sitting fees within the limits prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 for every Board/Committee meeting attended by them

a.	 Non-Executive Independent Directors:

Sitting Fees Paid 2023-24 (in Lakhs)

Name `

Justice Shri.S. Jagadeesan 0.30

Dr.Major D.Raja 0.40

Smt. Nilima Sathyanarayanan 0.40

During the year 2023-24 there is no pecuniary relationship or transactions made or entered between the Company 
and Non-Executive/Independent Directors.

b.	 Executive Chairman and Managing Director:

(In Lakhs)

Name of Director Salary Benefits Bonus Stock Options

Shri. M. Nandagopal, Executive 
Chairman and Managing Director

79.13 Nil Nil Nil

Shri. Arvind Nandagopal, Managing 
Director (upto December 28,2023)

30.39 Nil Nil Nil

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

5.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in Compliance with the provisions of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

5.1 	 Terms of Reference:

The Committee oversees, reviews and monitors all matters connected with transfer/transmission/transposition of 
shares/non-receipt of Annual Report, issue of duplicate Share certificate, Consolidation and split of share certificates, 
re-materialization and dematerialization of shares, reviewing the performance of Registrar and Transfer Agents and 

Dr.Major
D.Raja
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looking into the redressal and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints 
related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report and non-receipt of declared dividends.

Further all the investors’ / shareholders’ grievances and the action taken by the Company to the satisfaction of the 
shareholders are brought to the attention of the Committee.

The Committee had Twenty-One meetings on the following dates during the year 2023-24 viz.,

04.04.2023, 12.04.2023, 20.04.2023, 04.05.2023, 15.05.2023, 08.06.2023, 28.06.2023, 06.07.2023, 
19.07.2023, 17.08.2023, 28.08.2023, 04.09.2023, 21.09.2023, 03.10.2023, 02.11.2023, 09.11.2023, 
14.12.2023, 21.12.2023, 29.12.2023, 11.01.2024, 18.01.2024

Name of the Member
Directorship in the 

Board 
Committee Chairmanship/

Membership
Number of 

Meeting’s Attended

Justice Shri. S. Jagadeesan Independent Director Chairman 21

Shri. M. Nandagopal Executive Chairman Member 21

Shri. Arvind Nandagopal Managing Director Member 15

Mr. Rajeev Bakshi Independent Director Chairman 00

Mrs. Jamuna Independent Director Member 00

Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Chennai, is the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA). The 
contact details are available in the General Shareholder Information section of the Report

5.2	� Details pertaining to the number of complaints received and responded and the status thereof during the 
financial year 2023-24 are given below:

Number of Complaints received 0

Number not solved to the satisfaction of Shareholders 0

Number of Pending Complaints 0

6.	 DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

6.1	 Annual General Meeting

	 Details of last three Annual General Meetings and the summary of Special Resolutions passed therein are as under:

Financial 
Year

Date Venue of AGM Time
No. of special 
resolution(s)

set out at the AGM

52nd AGM 
2020-21

15.11.2021 AGM conducted through 
Videoconferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio

Visual Means (‘OAVM‘)

11.00 A.M -

53rd AGM 
2021-22

26.09.2022 AGM conducted through 
Videoconferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio

Visual Means (‘OAVM‘)

11.00 A.M -

54th AGM 
2022-23

28.12.2023 AGM conducted through 
Videoconferencing (‘VC’)/Other Audio

Visual Means (‘OAVM‘)

11.00 A.M -
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6.2	 Postal Ballot:

During the year, there were no resolutions passed through postal ballot and as at the year end, there are no 
proposals to pass special resolutions through postal ballot except those requiring to be passed pursuant to the 
Companies Act, 2013/Listing Regulations which will be done after providing adequate notice to the shareholders.

6.3	 Extra Ordinary General Meeting:

Date Venue of AGM Time
No. of special resolution(s)

set out at the EGM

29th September,
2023

EGM conducted through Video 
conferencing (‘VC’) /Other Audio 
Visual Means (‘OAVM‘)

11:00 AM 1(One)
Appointment of Shri. M Nandagopal 
(DIN: 00058710) as Managing 
Director and Executive Chairman of 
the Company from October 3, 2023 to 
October 2, 2028,

7.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Your Company recognizes the significance of timely dissemination of information to shareholders. Accordingly, 
the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial of the Company results were published in the leading English and 
Vernacular language newspaper, “Business Standard” (English) and “Makkal Kural” (Tamil) periodically.

In compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations,2015, all vital information, announcements and policies 
of the Company have been posted on the Company’s website: http://www.binnylimited.in

All material information in terms of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and other rules and Regulations issued by the SEBI 
about the Company is promptly communicated to BSE Ltd (BSE) where the Company’s shares are listed, through the 
prescribed mode of communication.

8.	 GENERAL SHAREHOLER INFOMRATION:

8.1 	 55thAnnual General Meeting:

	 Date: 31ST December,2025		  Time:	 11:45 a.m.

The AGM shall be conducted through Video Conferencing or Other Audio-Visual Means in compliance with 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules and the framework issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
affairs issued in this regard.

Venue: No.01, Cooks Road, Perambur, Chennai - 600012

8.2 	 Financial Year:

	 The financial year covers the period from 1st April to 31st March every year.

8.3 	 Date of Book Closure

	 29th December, 2025 to 31st December,2025 (both days inclusive)

8.4 	 Dividend payment date:

	 No dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company.

8.5 	 Listing of Stock Exchange:

	 The Stock Exchange at which the equity shares of the Company are listed and the stock code is:

Name of Stock Exchange Address Security ID / Scrip Code

BSE Limited P.J. Tower, Dalal Street, Fort Mumbai – 400 001. Binny / 514215

ISIN of Company’s equity shares having face value of ` 5 each is INE118K01011. The Company has paid till date, 
appropriate listing fees to the stock exchange where the Company’s Equity Shares are listed.

http://www.binnyltd.in/policies_codes.html
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8.6 	 Market Price:

	 The closing market price of equity shares on March 31, 2024 (last trading day of the year) was ` 146.35 on BSE.

	 Monthly High/Low price of the Equity Shares traded during the year 2023-24 in BSE Limited is given as below;

(2023-24) April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

BSE
High 344 324 299.95 275 300 259 308 242 223 204.4 205 170

Low 234 265.25 220 231.65 225.1 229.5 222.3 216.9 203 176.45 167.25 143.7

8.7 	 Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

	� M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Chennai, is Registrar and Transfer Agent for the company providing 
connectivity with the NSDL / CDSL for demat services, also undertake share transfer in physical format and other 
related services. Members are requested to send all their communications and documents pertaining to both shares 
in physical form and dematerialised form to the Registrar at the following address:

M/s CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED
UNIT: BINNY
5thFloor, Subramanian Building
No. 1, Club House Road,
Chennai 600 002
Phone: 044-28460390(5 lines);
Fax: 044-28460129
Email: investor@cameoindia.com

Contact person:
Shri. R D Ramaswamy
Designation: Director
Ms. Jessy
Designation: Joint Manager

8.8 	 Share Transfer System

The share transfer and other requests are processed within 15 days from the date of lodgment, provided the 
documents are complete in all respects.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee meets as and when required to consider and approve the transfer, 
transmission of shares of the Company. The dematerialized shares are transferred directly to the beneficiaries 
through the depositories. As of March 31, 2024, there are no pending share transfers pertaining to the year under 
review.

8.9 	 Shareholding as on March 31, 2024

a)	 Distribution of equity Shareholding as at March 31, 2024.

Shareholding Shareholders % Total Shares % on equity capital

1-1000 11304 94.6892 1555414 6.9689

1001-2000 311 2.6051 466738 2.0912

2001-3000 98 0.8209 243759 1.0921

3001-4000 40 0.3351 135863 0.6087

4001-5000 37 0.3099 173988 0.7795

5001-10000 86 0.7204 606113 2.7156

10001-50000 50 0.4188 947224 4.2439

50001-100000 4 0.0335 313804 1.406

100001-9999999999 8 0.067 17876507 80.094

Total : 11938 100 22319410 100

mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
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b)	 Shareholding pattern as at March 31, 2024.

Category % to Total Equity Capital

Promoters 56.20

Bodies Corporate 19.46

Bank/Financial Institutions 0.31

Resident 18.82

HUF 1.14

Central Government/State Government/ President of India 1.66

Foreign National/Portfolio Investor 0.04

NRI 2.36

Trusts 0.01

Total 100.00

8.10	Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The detail of shares dematerialized and those held in physical form, as on March 31, 2024.

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage to the equity Capital

PHYSICAL
DEMAT
NSDL
CDSL

1408895

19296335
1614180

6.31

86.46
7.23

Shareholders who continue to hold shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their shares at the earliest 
and avail of the various benefits of dealing in securities in electronic/ dematerialized form. For any clarification, 
assistance or information, please contact M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Limited. 

8.11	Outstanding GDR / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instrument, as on 31st March 2024:

As on date, the Company has not issued GDRs, ADRs, or any other Convertible Instruments which are pending for 
conversion.

8.12	Address for Communication:
Shri. Nellandi Devan Yuvaraj, CFO
Address: Binny Limited, 1 Cooks Road, Perambur, Chennai 600 012
E-mail: binny@binnyltd.in
Phone: 044-26621053.

9.	 DISCLOSURES:

i.	 Materially Significant Related Party Transactions:

Related party transactions are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts and during the year, there are no other materially 
significant related parties’ transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or 
other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

The policy on related party transactions has been placed on the Company’s website and can be accessed through 
the following link:

http://www.binnylimited.in

mailto:binny@binnyltd.in
http://www.binnyltd.in/policies_codes.html
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ii.	 Penalties / Strictures during last three years

Sr.
No.

Compliance 
Requirement
(Regulations /
circulars/ Circular 
No. guidelines 
including Specific 
clause)

Deviations Action 
Taken 
By

Fine Amount Observations Remarks 

1 Regulation 33 
(Financial Results) 
of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations 
and Disclosure 
Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission of 
Financial Results 
for the year ended 
31st March 2023 
within the due 
date.

BSE `1,77,000/- & 
`1,12,000/- 
(Including GST)

The Audited 
Financial 
Results for the 
year ended 31st 
March,2023 is 
submitted to the 
BSE beyond the 
due date under 
Regulation 33 
of SEBI LODR 
Regulations,2015

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 15th 
September & 
03rd October 
2023 
respectively.

2 Regulation 33 
(Financial Results) 
of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations 
and Disclosure 
Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission of 
Financial Results 
for the quarter 
ended 30th June 
and 30th September 
2023 within the 
due date.

BSE `1,71,000/- 
(Including GST)

Unaudited 
Financial 
Results for the 
quarter ended 
30th June and 
30th September 
2023 was not 
submitted within 
the due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 14th 
December 
2023 
respectively

3 Regulation 24A 
(Secretarial 
Compliance 
Report) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure 
Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission 
of Secretarial 
Compliance Report 
for the Financial 
Year ended 31st 
March 2023 within 
the due date.

BSE `63,720/- & 
`1,82,900/- & 
`37,760/- 
(Including GST)

Secretarial 
Compliance 
Report for the 
financial year 
ended 31st March 
2023 was not 
submitted within 
the due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 26th 
June,30th 
June and 12th 
July,2023

No strictures/penalties were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any 
matter related to capital markets during the last three years except the above. The Company has been complying 
with SEBI Rules and Regulations.

iii.	 Whistle Blower Policy

During the Financial Year, there was no such incident that necessitated the Audit Committee to investigate according 
to the Whistle Blower Policy.

In line with Section 177 (9) of the Act read with relevant rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) 
Rules, 2014 and Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism overseen by the Audit 
Committee. This has been uploaded in the Company’s website. The link for the same is http://www.binnylimited.in

No personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee of the Company.

iv.	 Compliance with the discretionary requirements under Listing Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors periodically reviewed the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the Company 
to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any. The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of 

http://www.binnyltd.in/policies_codes.html
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Listing Regulations. In addition, the Company has also adopted the following non-mandatory requirements to the 
extent mentioned below:

Separate posts of Chairman and Managing Director:

The Positions of the Chairman and Managing Director are held by Shri. M. Nandagopal 

v.	 Subsidiary Companies/Associate Companies 

	 The Company is having one Subsidiary Company. 

vi.	 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

As the Company is not engaged in commodity business, commodity risk is not applicable. The foreign exchange 
risk is being managed/hedged to the extent considered necessary. The Company had not entered into any forward 
contracts for any foreign exchange risks during the year under review.

The Company has complied with the requirements of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the Regulations.

vii.	 Utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement during the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

viii.	 Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice with regard to disqualification of directors

A certificate from Shri RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI, practicing company secretary certifying that none of the directors 
on the Board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors 
of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed and forms part 
of this report

ix.	 Details of recommendation of any committee of the Board which are not accepted by the Board

The Board of directors accepted all the recommendation(s) of the Committees of the Board during financial year 
ended March 31, 2024.

x.	� Details of fees paid to the statutory auditor(s) and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the 
each of the statutory auditor is a part for the financial year ended March 31, 2024

 ` in Lakhs

Type of service Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023

Statutory Audit 25.00 5.90

Other matters 0.00 4.60

Total 25.00 10.50

xi.	� Disclosure of complaints received under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013

Particulars FY 2023-24

No. of complaints on sexual harassments received during the year Nil

No. of complaint disposed off during the year Nil

No. of cases pending as on at end of the financial year Nil
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xii.	� The Disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 are as follows:

Regulation Particulars of Regulation Compliance Status (Yes/No/NA)

17 Board of Directors Yes

18 Audit Committee Yes

19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes

20 Stakeholders Relationship Committee Yes

21 Risk Management Committee Yes

22 Vigil Mechanism Yes

23 Related Party Transactions NA

24 Corporate Governance Requirements with respect to 
subsidiaries of listed entity

NA

25 Obligations with respect to Independent Directors Yes

26 Obligations with respect to Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel

Yes

27 Other Corporate Governance Requirements Yes

46 (2) (b) to (i) Disclosures on website Yes

10.	 CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company’s Board of Directors laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct under Corporate Governance for 
all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The said Code of Conduct has also been 
posted on the Company’s website in the below link: http://www.binnylimited.in

The Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct 
for 2023-24 in the Board meeting held on 04th December,2025. A declaration signed by the Company’s Whole 
Time Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

11.	 CERTIFICATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under the Listing Regulations, 2015, Shri. RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI, Practicing Company Secretary 
has verified the compliances of the Corporate Governance. A Certificate affirming the compliance is annexed to 
this Report.

12.	 CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations, 2015, the CEO/CFO certificate for the financial year 
2023-24 signed by Mr.Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan, Whole Time Director and Mr.Nellandi Devan Yuvaraj, CFO, 
was placed before the Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on 04th December,2025 and the 
same is provided as Annexure to this Report.

13.	 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with Regulation 26 read with Schedule V (D) of the Listing Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that 
all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with their respective code of 
conduct and ethics as applicable to them, for the year ended on 31st March 2024.

	 On behalf of the Board 

Chennai	 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan
December 04,2025	  Whole Time Director

 DIN: 06620068

http://www.binnyltd.in/images/policies/CODE
Mr.Sathyanarayanan
Mr.Nellandi
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ANNEXURE - IV

FORM NO. AOC-1
Statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 - AOC -1) 

(In ` in lakhs, except % of shareholding)

Sl.
No.

Name of the 
Subsidiary

Financial Period 
Ended

Share Capital 
(` in Lakhs)

% of 
shareholding

Remarks

1 Binny New Re 
Energy Limited

31.03.2024 1 99.94 Incorporated on 22.11.2021 
and has yet to commence the 
operation

FORM NO. AOC-2
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and  

Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties during the 
financial year 2022-23 as referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. 	 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NIL 

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To,

The Members,
BINNY LIMITED 
No: 1, Cooks Road, Otteri, Perambur, Chennai, 
Tamil Nadu, India- 600012

I have examined all relevant records of BINNY LIMITED , having its registered office at No: 1, Cooks Road, Otteri, 
Perambur, Chennai, India, 600012, for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance 
under Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. I have 
obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purpose of certification. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination 
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and the representations 
made by the Directors and the Management, I certify that the Company has generally complied regarding the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 except as given below:

Sr.
No.

Compliance 
Requirement

(Regulations /circulars/ 
Circular No. guidelines 

including Specific 
clause)

Deviations Action 
Taken 

By

Fine Amount Observations Remarks 

1 Regulation 33 (Financial 
Results) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission of 
Financial Results for the 
year ended 31st March 
2023 within the due 
date.

BSE `1,77,000/- & 
`1,12,000/- 
(Including GST)

The Audited Financial 
Results for the year 
ended 31st March,2023 
is submitted to the 
BSE beyond the due 
date under Regulation 
33 of SEBI LODR 
Regulations,2015

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 15th 
September 
& 03rd 
October 2023 
respectively.

2 Regulation 33 (Financial 
Results) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission of 
Financial Results for the 
quarter ended 30th June 
and 30th September 2023 
within the due date.

BSE `1,71,000/- 
(Including GST)

Unaudited Financial 
Results for the quarter 
ended 30th June and 
30th September 2023 
was not submitted 
within the due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 14th 
December 
2023 
respectively

3 Regulation 24A 
(Secretarial Compliance 
Report) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

Non-Submission of 
Secretarial Compliance 
Report for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March 
2023 within the due 
date.

BSE `63,720/- & 
`1,82,900/- & 
`37,760/- 
(Including GST)

Secretarial Compliance 
Report for the financial 
year ended 31st 
March 2023 was not 
submitted within the 
due date.

Paid Interest 
and Penalty 
paid on 26th 
June,30th 
June and 12th 
July,2023

For RLS & ASSOCIATES
Rajiblochan Sarangi

Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Chennai 
Date: 08.12.2025

ACS No. 20312
CP No. 17498

UDIN: A020312G002277303
Peer Review No.2491/2022



50

BINNY LIMITED

CEO / CFO Certification

To,

The Board of Directors,

Binny Limited, Chennai.

We, Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan,Whole Time Director and Nellandi Devan Yuvaraj, CFO of Binny Limited to the best 
of our knowledge and beliefhereby certify that:

A.	� We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024 and that to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief:

	 (1)	� these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

	 (2)	� these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	� There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year 
ended on March 31, 2024 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C.	� We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

	 (1)	 There have not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 (2)	� There have not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

	 (3)	� instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan	 Nellandi Devan Yuvaraj
Whole Time Director 	  CFO

Place: Chennai
Date: 04th December, 2025
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The Members,

BINNY LIMITED 
No: 1, Cooks Road, Otteri, Perambur, Chennai, 
Tamil Nadu, India- 600012

I have examined all relevant disclosures received from the Directors of BINNY LIMITED, having its registered office at 
No: 1, Cooks Road, Otteri, Perambur, Chennai -600012(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before 
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 
V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 
Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies, by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority as on March 31, 2024.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RLS & ASSOCIATES

Rajiblochan Sarangi
Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Chennai 
Date : 08.12.2025

ACS No. 20312
CP No. 17498

UDIN: A020312G002277921
Peer Review No.2491/2022

www.mca.gov.in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Binny Limited

Report on the Audited Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Binny Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to standalone financial statements, including a summary 
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial 
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of 
the matter described in the basis of qualified opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and the loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.	 We draw attention to Note 2.16 of the standalone financial statements which state that the Company was engaged 
in arbitration proceedings with one of its Joint Development Partners, subsequent to which both parties have 
agreed to a settlement supported by an amendment agreement dated 06/08/2025. As per the revised terms the Joint 
Development Partner will settle a further sum of ` 30,000 lakhs in addition to ` 62,351.95 Lakhs already paid by 
the said partner till March 31, 2024. This settlement is in respect of Phase I of the project including area sold up 
to 31.03.2024 and further proposed sale until the completion of Phase I. Consequent to this agreement and the 
change in the methodology of revenue sharing, the company has offered an income of ` 3,418.68 lakhs during the 
current financial year as against an income of ` 11,911.45 lakhs recognisable under the earlier Joint Development 
agreement.

2.	 During the year, the Company has recognised full impairment provision amounting to ̀  3,456.82 lakhs towards certain 
receivables, as disclosed in Note 2.22 of the standalone financial statements. The Management has not provided 
us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the recoverability of these receivables. Consequently, we 
are unable to comment on the completeness of the said receivables or ascertain whether the impairment provision 
recognised is appropriate on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

3.	 The Company has advanced in the earlier years ` 2,918.05 Lakhs to RRB Energy Limited in respect of which 
the company has not provided us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the recoverability of the 
amount. Further no confirmation of balance has been provided to us. No impairment has been considered in these 
accompanying standalone financial statements in respect of this receivable.

4.	 We draw attention to note 2.4 of the standalone financial statements that as part of the settlement of advances given 
to a related party, the Company has received certain parcels of land pursuant to a sale agreement. Of these parcels 
of land, a portion amounting to ` 26,765.00 lakhs has not been registered and no sale deed has been executed to 
evidence the legal transfer of title in respect of this land. The Company has recognised these unregistered lands also 
as Inventories in its books and hence the accounting treatment adopted by the Company does not comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards.

5.	 During the year, the Company has recorded certain expenses amounting to ` 290.54 lakhs pertaining to earlier 
financial years. The Management has not provided us with the underlying supporting vouchers for these transactions. 
In the absence of such primary records, we have been unable to verify the nature, accuracy, period of occurrence, 
or completeness of these transactions. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the correctness of the amounts 
recorded, the appropriateness of recognising these items in the current financial year, or the consequential impact, 
if any, on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

6.	 During the year, the Company has recorded certain expenses amounting to ` 325.28 lakhs pertaining to earlier 
financial years. We are unable to comment on the correctness and appropriateness of recognising these items in the 
current financial year, or the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying standalone financial statements.
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7.	 The Company has entered into a settlement agreement with a related party whereby certain assets are to be transferred 
in settlement of advances previously given by the Company. In respect of assets, other than land, transferred for a 
value of ` 3,643.66 lakhs under this arrangement, the Company has recognised an impairment loss of ` 1,819.21 
lakhs after providing depreciation of ̀  430.70 lakhs (for the FY 2022-23 and 2023-24). Consequently, we are unable 
to comment on the appropriateness with respect to the settlement of these advances and the resultant impact on the 
accompanying standalone financial statements.

8.	 With respect to Sale Agreement between the Company and M/s Sanklecha Infra Projects Private Ltd, the company 
has not recognised revenue in the earlier financial years in accordance with provisions of Ind AS 115. As per the 
Sale Agreement between the Company and M/s Sanklecha Infra Projects Private Ltd, possession of the land was 
handed over to the said party on the basis of registered power of attorney and the latter completed the construction 
activities whereby a sum of ` 1,912 lakhs is receivable on account of the same. Further the value of inventory 
includes the sum relating to the cost of this land, which is not ascertainable. In view of the above, we are unable 
to comment on the completeness and appropriateness of the recognition of revenue, compliance with provisions of 
Indian Accounting Standard 115. Further no confirmation of balance has been made available to us, hence we are 
unable to comment on the correctness and recoverability of the receivable balance in the accompanying standalone 
financial statements.

9.	 With reference to the Joint Development Agreement with SPR Construction Private Limited, revenue from the 
operation of school at 40% share ought to have been recognised the Company, however no revenue has been 
recognised in the accompanying Standalone financial statements. We are unable to comment on the completeness 
of the revenue and the corresponding receivable thereon on account of this transaction.

	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include Standalone 
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Sec 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
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Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

•	  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matter

SEBI has passed orders against the company during the period 2013-14 to 2020-21, stating diversion of funds, unapproved 
and undisclosed related party transactions, non-recognition of income in respect of sale of land etc. imposing penalties 
amounting to ` 600 lakhs on the company. The order also mandated individual penalties on the then directors of the 
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company as well as directing the change in composition of the Board of directors and further directed the return of 
substantial amounts back to the company together with interest on account of the diversion of funds. The company has 
informed us that these SEBI orders have been challenged before the Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT). We are informed 
that the SAT has stayed this order and that the matter is currently pending adjudication.

The Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by another 
auditor who expressed a modified opinion on those statements on November 29, 2023.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)	 Subject to the matters specified in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

b)	 Subject to the matters specified in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flow 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d)	 Subject to the matters specified in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, In our opinion, aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses a 
qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 	 the company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to the Standalone financial statements.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i.	 The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 on its financial position in 
its Standalone Financial Statements – Refer Note No. 2.25 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii.	 The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 No amounts were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv.	 (a)	� The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

	 (b)	� The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 
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entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		  (c)	� Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances 
in respect of the financial year 2023-24, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

	 v.	� The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Hence, we do not comment on the 
compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 vi.	� The Company has not maintained its books of accounts using the accounting software that has an audit trail 
(edit log) feature enabled as prescribed under Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014. Accordingly, 
we are unable to comment on the existence, operation or integrity of such audit trail features during the year.

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

for Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 004636S

CA Dasaraty V
M No: 026336
Partner
UDIN: 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai, 04 December 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Binny Limited (the 
“Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on 
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible 
effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph of our Independent Auditor’s Report on 
the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

for Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 004636S

CA Dasaraty V
M No: 026336
Partner
UDIN: 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai., 04 December 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Binny Limited of even date)

i.	 In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

	 (a)	 A)	� The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of property, plant and equipment; 
however, the records do not include the location-wise details of these assets.

		  B)	 The Company does not have any Intangible assets hence clause (B) is not applicable.

	 (b)	� As explained to us, all the property, plant and equipment has been physically verified by the management 
during the year, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification.

	 (c)	� The company does not hold any immovable properties as property, plant and equipment hence we do not 
comment on the same.

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year.

	 (e)	� We have been informed that no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii.	 (a)	� In our opinion and according to information provided to us, the physical verification of inventories was not 
conducted by the management in respect of inventories transferred from Mohan Breweries and Distilleries 
Limited during the year and therefore we are unable to determine whether any adjustments are necessary to 
the inventory balances and related impacts on the statement of profit and loss account.

	 (b)	� The Company has not been sanctioned working capital in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate at any points 
of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence 
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

iii.	� The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and granted unsecured 
loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which 

	 (a)	� The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided 
security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� The company has not made investments (or) granted loan during the year and hence reporting under this clause 
and clause (c) , (d) and (e) is not applicable.

	 (f)	 �The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is 
not applicable.

iv.	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not complied with 
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, in respect of an advance in the 
nature of loan granted to a company in which a director is interested. The outstanding balance of such advance 
was ` 11,935.35 lakhs as at March 31, 2024.

v.	� The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 
31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi.	� The maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence reporting under this clause is 
not applicable.
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vii.	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable. Further, the following undisputed statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable:

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of the 
Dues Amount (`)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates
Due date Date of 

Payment
Remarks 
if any,

Income Tax Tax 13,43,884 Mar-24 30-04-2024    

Income Tax Tax, Interest 
and Penalty 27,244 Mar-20 30-04-2020    

Professional Tax Tax 11,04,326 Mar-24 31-03-2024    

Urban Land Tax Tax 6,15,664 Mar-24 31-03-2024    

Value Added Tax Tax, Interest 5,38,528 May-15 20-06-2015    

Provident Fund Tax 98,812 Mar-24 15-04-2024    

Employee State 
Insurance Tax 5,265 Mar-24 15-04-2024    

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of goods and service tax and other 
material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any 
dispute except those referred below. The outstanding disputes as of March 31, 2024 are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount (`)
Period to which 

the amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Goods and Services Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  42,37,71,452 FY 2018-19 Honourable High Court

Goods and Services Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  24,83,69,028 FY 2019-20 Honourable High Court

Goods and Services Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  24,40,61,985 FY 2020-21 Honourable High Court

Goods and Services Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  44,49,56,363 FY 2021-22 Honourable High Court

Goods and Services Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  74,70,37,804 FY 2022-23 Honourable High Court

Income Tax Tax and Interest  3,20,35,365 FY 2014-15 Honourable High Court
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Name of 
the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount (`)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Income Tax Tax and Interest  3,90,78,559 FY 2015-16 Honourable High Court

Income Tax Tax and Interest  3,89,36,211 FY 2016-17 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax and Interest  81,05,679 FY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax and Interest  42,03,410 FY 2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  10,87,12,891 FY 2013-14 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  7,10,35,970 FY 2014-15 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  17,09,81,423 FY 2017-18 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  2,11,009 FY 2011-12 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  29,23,46,779 FY 2018-19 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  31,28,96,136 FY 2019-20 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  6,58,66,512 FY 2020-21 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Income Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  20,96,42,786 FY 2021-22 Commissioner of Income Tax, Appeals

Wealth Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  5,74,73,000 FY 2011-12 to 
FY 2014-15

Commissioner of Wealth Tax, Appeals

Wealth Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  18,23,66,000 FY 1993-94 to 
FY 2010-11

Commissioner of Wealth Tax, Appeals

Wealth Tax Tax, Interest and Penalty  7,17,68,000 FY 2001-02 to 
FY 2004-05

Commissioner of Wealth Tax, Appeals

viii.	� As per the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded 
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.

ix.	 (a) 	The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings from any lender. 

	 (b) 	�The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.

	 (c) 	�The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the 
beginning of the year and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

	 (d) 	�On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not taken 
any funds on short term basis and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

	 (e)	� On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the company has not taken 
any loans from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
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	 (f)	� The Company has not raised any loans during the year by way of pledge of securities of subsidiaries and hence 
reporting on clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x.	 (a)	� The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of Preference 
shares and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

xi.	 (a)	� In respect of reporting on frauds, SEBI has passed orders against the company during the period 2013-14 to 
2020-21, stating diversion of funds, unapproved and undisclosed related party transactions, non-recognition 
of income in respect of sale of land etc. imposing penalties amounting to ` 600 lakhs on the company. 

		�  The order also mandated individual penalties on the then directors of the company as well as directing the 
change in composition of the Board of directors and further directed the return of substantial amounts back to 
the company together with interest on account of the diversion of funds. The company has informed us that 
these SEBI orders have been challenged before the Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT). 

		  We are informed that the SAT has stayed this order and that the matter is currently pending adjudication. 

	 (b)	� No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during 
the year and up to the date of this report.

	 (c)	� As per the information provided by the management, the Company has not received any complaints from 
whistle blower during the year (and up to the date of this report).

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable

xiii.	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 177 of the 
Companies Act are not applicable to the Company. The company has complied with the provisions of section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, and for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
Indian accounting standards.

xiv.	 (a)	� In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size of the company 
and the nature of its business. 

	 (b)	� We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company during the year 
until date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

xv.	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	� In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (d)	� In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable.

xvii.	� The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial 
year.

xviii.	� There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and there are no objections raised by the 
outgoing auditors.
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xix.	� On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements and our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 
as and when they fall due.

xx.	 (a)	� The Company has not transferred the remaining amount unspent as under section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of other than ongoing projects, to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 
till the date of our report.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no unspent amount with respect 
to ongoing projects which needs to be transferred to a special account in compliance with sub section (6) of 
Section 135 of the Act.

for Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 004636S

CA Dasaraty V
Partner 
M No: 026336
UDIN: 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai., 04 December 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
(In ` lakhs)

Particulars Note
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

ASSETS
1.	 Non-current assets
	 (a)	 Property, plant and equipment 2.1  224.08  3,269.58 
	 (b)	 Right-of-use assets 2.2  45.02  -   
	 (c)	 Financial assets
		  (i)	 Investments 2.3  1.00  1.01 
		  (ii)	 Other financial assets 2.6  631.12  631.12 
	 (e)	 Deferred tax asset (net) 2.24  1,290.82  180.45 
	 (f)	 Other non current assets 2.7  1,097.64  1,032.05 

2.	 Current assets
	 (a)	 Inventories 2.4  61,921.55  54,169.88 
	 (b)	 Financial assets
	 	 (i)	 Investments 2.3  1.28  89.24 
	 	 (ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 2.5  218.08  823.85 
	 	 (ii)	 Other financial assets 2.6  150.15  120.39 
	 (c)	 Current tax assets (net) 2.24  2,559.59  4,279.32 
	 (d)	 Other Current assets 2.7  16,070.38  29,831.64 
	 (e)	 Assets held for sale 2.8  906.00  -   

	 Total assets  85,116.70  94,428.53 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1.	 Equity
	 (a)	  Equity share capital 2.10  1,115.97  1,115.97 
	 (b)	  Other equity  39,003.43  41,437.35 
	 Total equity  40,119.40  42,553.32 
2.	 Non-current liabilities
	 (a)	  Financial liabilities
	 	 (i)	  Borrowings 2.11  27.73  53.93 
	 	 (ia)	 Lease liability 2.2  30.47  -   
	 	 (ii)	  Other financial liabilities 2.12  450.00  900.00 
	 (b)	  Provisions 2.13  19.87  71.20 
3. 	Current liabilities
	 (a)	  Financial liabilities
	 	 (i)	  Borrowings 2.11  26.20  1,937.33 
	 	 (ia)	 Lease liability 2.2  20.36  -   
	 	 (ii)	  Other financial liabilities 2.12  295.30  433.66 
	 (b)	  Other current liabilities 2.14  36,670.13  40,107.88 
	 (c)	  Provisions 2.13  41.10  43.93 
	 (d)	  Current Tax liabilities 2.24  7,416.14  8,327.28 

Total equity and liabilities  85,116.70  94,428.53 

Material accounting policies and other notes 1.1

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached 
For Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004636S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Binny Limited

CA Dasaraty V
Partner
M No: 026336

 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan 
Wholetime Director

DIN: 06620068

 James Richard Williams
Director

DIN: 06752954

UDIN : 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai., 04 December, 2025

N.D. Yuvaraj 
CFO

PAN: AVTPY0595L
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
(In ` lakhs, except equity share and per equity share data)

Particulars Note
Year ended  

March 31, 2024
Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations 2.16  6,304.51  14,455.78 
Other income 2.17  1,411.91  985.40 
Total income  7,716.41  15,441.17 

Expenses
Purchases of Stock in Trade 2.18  9,057.48  26,765.00 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 2.19  (7,861.01)  (25,320.25)
Employee benefits expense 2.20  916.97  452.50 
Finance costs 2.21  31.21  639.58 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.1  91.76  428.33 
Other expenses 2.22  8,181.25  2,620.41 
Total expenses  10,417.66  5,585.58 

Profit before tax  (2,701.24)  9,855.59 

Tax Expense: 
Current Tax 2.24  (835.00)  (4,109.17)
Deferred Tax 2.24  1,112.39  191.67 

Profit for the year  (2,423.85)  5,938.10 

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, net  (8.04)  (11.95)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, net  (2.02)  -   
Total other comprehensive income / (loss), net of tax (10.07) (11.95)
Total comprehensive income for the year  (2,433.92) 5,926.15

Earnings per equity share
Equity shares of par value `5/- each
Basic (in ` per share) 2.23  (10.86)  26.61 
Diluted (in ` per share) 2.23  (10.86)  26.61 

Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share
Basic (in shares) 2.23  2,23,19,410  2,23,19,410 
Diluted (in shares) 2.23  2,23,19,410  2,23,19,410 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached 
For Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004636S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Binny Limited

CA Dasaraty V
Partner
M No: 026336

 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan 
Wholetime Director

DIN: 06620068

 James Richard Williams
Director

DIN: 06752954

UDIN : 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai., 04 December, 2025

N.D. Yuvaraj 
CFO

PAN: AVTPY0595L



66

BINNY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Accounting Policy

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with 
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

 (In ` lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax for the year  (2,701.24)  9,855.59 

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities :

Depreciation and Amortisation  91.76  428.33 

Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income  (8.04)  (11.95)

Impairment loss recognized / (reversed) under expected credit loss model  5,091.02  -   

Finance cost  31.21  639.58 

Interest income  (4.68)  (3.02)

Changes in assets and liabilities

Other financial assets, and other current assets  10,678.77  25,618.28 

Inventories  (7,751.68)  (25,320.25)

Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions  (4,080.27)  (1,757.38)

Cash generated from operations  1,346.84  9,449.19 
Adjustments for Income taxes  (26.41)  (2,047.57)

Net cash generated by operating activities  1,320.43  7,401.62 

Cash flow from investing activities:

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment  (101.14)  (3,472.72)

Interest received  4.68  3.02 

Proceeds on sale of investments  87.97  -   

Payments to acquire investments  -    (11.23)

Net cash used in investing activities  (8.49)  (3,480.94)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Repayment of borrowings  (1,937.33)  (2,665.84)

Lease liabilities  50.83  -   

Payment of interest  (31.21)  (639.58)

Net cash used in financing activities  (1,917.71)  (3,305.42)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (605.77)  615.26 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  823.85  208.59 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  218.08  823.85 
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 2.6)
Balances with banks:

In Current an deposit accounts  217.85  533.08 

Cash on hand  0.23  290.77 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  218.08  823.85 

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Balance as at the beginning  1,991.25  4,657.09 

Changes from financing cash flows

Proceeds from/ (repayment) of loans and borrowings, net  (1,937.33)  2,665.84 

Balance as at the end  53.93  1,991.25 

 (In ` lakhs)

As per our report of even date attached 
For Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004636S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Binny Limited

CA Dasaraty V
Partner
M No: 026336

 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan 
Wholetime Director

DIN: 06620068

 James Richard Williams
Director

DIN: 06752954

UDIN : 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai., 04 December, 2025

N.D. Yuvaraj 
CFO

PAN: AVTPY0595L
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024
Equity share capital

(1) Current Reporting Period

(In ` lakhs, except equity share)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period (Fully paid up)  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period (partly paid up)  -    -   

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period  -    -   

Add: Share Capital issued during the year  -    -   

Less: Share Capital cancelled during the year  -    -   

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (Fully paid up)  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (Partly paid up)  -    -   

(2) Previous Reporting Period

(In ` lakhs, except equity share)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period (Fully paid up)  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period (partly paid up)  -    -   

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -    -   

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period  -    -   

Add: Share Capital issued during the year  -    -   

Less: Share Capital cancelled during the year  -    -   

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (Fully paid up)  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (Partly paid up)  -    -   
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Other Equity

(1) Current Reporting Period	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus
Other 

comprehen-
sive income

 Total  Capital 
reserve 

 Capital 
redemption 

reserve 

Revaluation 
reserve 

 Securities 
premium 

 Retained 
earnings 

Balance as at 1 April 2023  10,287.54  11,721.64  2,302.30  1,077.66  16,029.44  18.76  41,437.35 

Changes in equity for the year 
ended March 31, 2024

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  (2,423.85)  -  (2,423.85)

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liability / asset, 
net  -  -  -  -  -  (10.07)  (10.07)

Changes in revaluation surplus  -  -  (1,150.91)  -  1,150.91  -  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2024  10,287.54  11,721.64  1,151.40  1,077.66  14,756.49  8.69  39,003.43 

(2) Previous Reporting Period	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus
Other 

comprehen-
sive income

 Total  Capital 
reserve 

 Capital 
redemption 

reserve 

Revaluation 
reserve 

 Securities 
premium 

Retained 
earnings 

Balance as at 1 April 2022  10,287.54  11,721.64  3,759.05  1,077.66  8,634.60  30.71  35,511.20 

Changes in equity for the year 
ended March 31, 2023

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  5,938.10  -  5,938.10 

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liability / asset, 
net  -  -  -  -  -  (11.95)  (11.95)

Changes in revaluation surplus  -  -  (1,456.74)  -  1,456.74  -  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2023  10,287.54  11,721.64  2,302.30  1,077.66 16,029.44  18.76  41,437.35 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached 
For Venkatesh & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004636S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Binny Limited

CA Dasaraty V
Partner
M No: 026336

 Sathyanarayanan Balakrishnan 
Wholetime Director

DIN: 06620068

 James Richard Williams
Director

DIN: 06752954

UDIN : 25026336BMINGQ9667
Chennai, 04 December, 2025

N.D. Yuvaraj 
CFO

PAN: AVTPY0595L
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Notes to the standalone financial statements
1.1 Company Overview

Binny Limited ("the Company" or Binny) primary business objective is real estate development of its substantial land holdings, 
including residential and potentially commercial properties.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at No.1, Cooks Road, 
Perambur, Chennai, Tamilnadu, India. The Company has its primary listings on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

The Standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on December 04, 2025.

1.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These Standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act''), 
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, defined benefit liability / 
(asset) which is recognized at the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets. The Ind AS are prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment 
rules issued thereafter. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to 
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The material accounting policy information 
used in preparation of the audited condensed standalone interim financial statements have been discussed in the respective notes. 

As the year to date figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digits, the figures reported for the previous quarters 
might not always add up to the year to date figures reported in this statement.

A  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information 
presented in Indian rupee has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs unless otherwise indicated.

B  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or

- �Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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C  Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

 -  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 -  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by 
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best 
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company engages with 
external valuers for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

-  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-  �Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used 
to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occurred.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant 
liabilities, such as contingent consideration.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises 
accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

-  Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 2.9)

-  Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 2.9)

-  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 2.9)

1.3  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving 
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in Note 1.4. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates and 
judgements are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed 
in the notes to the Standalone financial statements.
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1.4  Critical Accounting estimates and Judgements

a. Revenue Recognition

In applying Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Company has exercised judgement in assessing the nature of its 
performance obligations and the point at which control of goods or services is transferred to customers.

Management has concluded that the developer is not a customer under the Joint Development Agreement. The Company’s performance 
obligation does not conclude when the land or development rights are handed over to the developer, as such transfer is only a 
preparatory step for construction and does not result in transfer of control to an external customer.

Revenue is recognised only when control of the developed property or proportionate share of land is transferred to the end customer, 
i.e., upon execution of the registered sale deed in favour of the buyer. This represents the point at which the Company’s right to 
consideration becomes enforceable and the performance obligation is satisfied.

In the case of fixed consideration arrangements, the Company determines the measure of progress towards satisfaction of its 
performance obligation by evaluating project development progress and sale status achieved by the developer. The estimation of 
progress and allocation of the transaction price involve judgement in evaluating costs incurred, development milestones, and expected 
sales realisation.

The Company regularly reviews its assessments and updates estimates as required to ensure that revenue recognition faithfully 
represents the transfer of control of goods or services to customers.

b. Income Taxes

The Company’s principal tax jurisdiction is India, and it is liable to income taxes under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or 
recovered for uncertain tax positions. The Company evaluates tax exposures based on its understanding of applicable tax laws, legal 
interpretations, and the advice of tax professionals, and records provisions where appropriate.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, Management considers whether some portion or all of such assets will not be 
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which 
the corresponding temporary differences or carry-forward losses are deductible.

In making this assessment, Management considers factors such as:

-  the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,

-  projections of future taxable income, and

-  tax-planning strategies available to ensure utilization of deferred tax assets.

Based on the Company’s historical taxable income and projections of future profitability over the periods in which the deferred 
tax assets are expected to reverse, Management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible temporary 
differences.

However, the amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable 
income are revised downward.

Refer to Note 2.24 for detailed disclosures on Income Taxes and Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) represent a significant portion of the total assets of the Company. The depreciation charge for 
each period is based on the estimated useful lives and residual values of these assets.The useful lives and residual values of the 
Company’s assets are determined by Management at the time of acquisition and are reviewed periodically, including at each financial 
year end, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment. These estimates are based on historical 
experience with similar assets, the expected usage of the assets, and anticipated future technological or economic developments that 
may affect their useful life or residual value. Any changes in these estimates are accounted for prospectively, in accordance with Ind 
AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Management believes that the current estimates of useful 
lives and residual values are appropriate and reflect the pattern in which the Company expects to derive future economic benefits 
from its assets.

Refer to Note 2.1 for the Company’s detailed accounting policy on Property, Plant and Equipment.
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2  Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Property, Plant and equipment

Accounting Policy

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase 
price, taxes, duties, and all other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The Company’s major items of property, plant and equipment comprise buildings, furniture and fixtures, office equipment, and 
vehicles.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are disclosed under Other non-current assets - Capital 
advances.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and 
maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, or based on Management’s estimate of the useful life, whichever is lower. 
The estimated useful lives of the major asset classes are as follows:

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 30 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Computers and Accessories 3 Years

Plant and Machinery 15 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use, and on disposals up to 
the date of disposal.

The residual values, useful lives, and depreciation methods are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end, and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of an asset, and 
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of disposal.

Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, 
if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets referred to as a Cash Generating Unit.

If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired, and the impairment loss 
being the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, but such an increase shall 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously.

The reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:      (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings
Plant and 
Machinery

Office 
Equipments

Computers 
and 

Accessories

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Vehicles Total

Gross Carrying Value as at April 1, 2023  1,041.07  2,502.18  38.63  11.29  24.82  237.33  3,855.33 

Additions  -    -    7.52  19.30  11.99  -    38.81 

Deletions  (924.39)  (2,502.18)  (12.08)  -    (1.24)  (0.68) (3,440.57)

Reclassification (1)

Gross Carrying Value as at March 31, 2024  116.68  -    34.07  30.59  35.58  236.65  453.57 

Accumulated Depreciation as at  
April 1, 2023

 151.84  286.55  12.67  5.20  16.38  113.11  585.74 

Depreciation  10.13  32.13  4.28  5.54  2.14  20.24  74.45 

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  (111.80)  (318.68)  -    -    (0.14)  (0.08)  (430.70)

Accumulated Depreciation as at  
March 31, 2024

 50.17  -    16.94  10.74  18.37  133.27  229.49 

Carrying Value as at April 1, 2023  889.23  2,215.63  25.96  6.09  8.45  124.22  3,269.58 

Carrying Value as at March 31, 2024  66.51  -    17.13  19.85  17.21  103.38  224.08 

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:      (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings
Plant and 
Machinery

Office 
Equipments

Computers 
and 

Accessories

Furniture and 
Fixtures

Vehicles Total

Gross Carrying Value as at April 1, 2022  116.68  -    18.33  5.09  20.01  222.49  382.60 

Additions  924.39  2,502.18  20.30  6.20  4.81  14.84  3,472.72 

Deletions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Gross Carrying Value as at March 31, 2023  1,041.07  2,502.18  38.63  11.29  24.82  237.33  3,855.33 

Accumulated Depreciation as at  
April 1, 2022

 41.77  -    10.83  4.28  13.54  86.98  157.41 

Depreciation  110.06  286.55  1.84  0.92  2.84  26.13  428.33 

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Accumulated Depreciation as at  
March 31, 2023

 151.84  286.55  12.67  5.20  16.38  113.11  585.74 

Carrying Value as at April 1, 2022  74.90  -    7.50  0.81  6.47  135.51  225.19 

Carrying Value as at March 31, 2023  889.23  2,215.63  25.96  6.09  8.45  124.22  3,269.58 
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2.2 Leases

Accounting Policy

The Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the inception of the arrangement. A contract is considered a lease 
if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To determine whether 
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)   the contract involves the use of a specifically identified asset;
(ii)  the Company obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset during the lease term; and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Company as a lessee

At the commencement of the lease term, the Company recognises a Right-of-Use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for 
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for:

Short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less), and

Low-value asset leases (such as small office equipment).

For these leases, lease payments are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease term is determined as the non-cancellable period of the lease, together with any options to extend or terminate the lease, 
where it is reasonably certain that such options will be exercised. Management evaluates lease terms and renewal options on a lease-
by-lease basis, considering operational requirements, leasehold improvements, and the availability of alternative assets.

The Right-of-Use assets are initially measured at cost, which includes:

the initial amount of the lease liability,

any lease payments made before or at commencement,

initial direct costs incurred, and

restoration obligations, if applicable, less any lease incentives received.

Subsequently, ROU assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.

ROU assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, with interest expense recognised over the lease term using the effective interest method.

When the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or termination option, the lease liability is 
remeasured, and a corresponding adjustment is made to the ROU asset.

ROU assets and lease liabilities are presented separately in the Balance Sheet, and lease payments are classified as financing cash 
flows in the Statement of Cash Flows.

Company as a Lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases, depending on whether substantially 
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are transferred to the lessee.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as finance leases, while all other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.
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The Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows: 	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings

Balance as at April 01, 2023  - 

Additions  62.33 

Deletions  - 

Depreciation  17.31 

Balance as at March 31, 2024  45.02 

The Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows 	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars Buildings

Balance as at April 01, 2022  - 

Additions  - 

Deletions  - 

Depreciation  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  - 

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU Assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of Profit 
and Loss

The break up of Current and Non Current Lease Liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:    (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31 2024
As at  

March 31 2023

Current Lease Liabilities  20.36  - 

Non Current Lease Liabilities  30.47  - 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  50.83  - 

The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31 2024
As at  

March 31 2023

Balance at the beginning  -  - 

Additions  62.33  - 

Finance cost accrued during the period  8.75  - 

Deletions  -  - 

Payment of Lease liabilities  (20.25)  - 

Translation Difference  -  - 

Balance at the end  50.83  - 

The details regarding the contractual maturities of Lease Liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March, 2023 on an undiscounted basis 
are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Less than one Year  27.90  - 

One to five years  34.02  - 

More than five years  -  - 

Total  61.92  - 
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The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease laibilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the 
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expenses recorded for short-term leases was `11.60 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.3 Investments

Accounting Policy

Investments of the Company primarily comprise investments in mutual funds and equity instruments in companies. All investments are 
initially recognised at fair value, which generally corresponds to the cost of acquisition, including transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the investment.

Investments are presented as non-current assets unless they are expected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting date, 
in which case they are classified as current assets.

After initial recognition, investments are classified and measured as follows in accordance with Ind AS 109 -Financial Instruments:

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investments in mutual fund units are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), since such instruments 
are held for the purpose of realising fair value gains and generating returns based on market performance.

These investments are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date, and any unrealised gains or losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Other Income.

Redemption or sale of mutual fund units is recognised on a trade-date basis, and the difference between the sale proceeds and the 
carrying amount is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in Equity Instruments of Companies

Equity investments that are not held for trading are classified as equity instruments at fair value.

At the time of initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in fair value of such 
equity instruments either through:

Other Comprehensive Income when the investment is made for strategic purposes and not for short-term profit, or

Profit or Loss when the investment is held primarily for trading or market-based returns.

For investments designated at FVOCI, subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and are 
not reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s 
right to receive payment is established.

For investments measured at FVTPL, fair value changes are recognised directly in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in 
which they arise.

The Company holds an investment in unquoted equity shares, classified as a financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss; 
based on information available on the MCA portal, the investee company is under liquidation as at the reporting date and, considering 
the significant uncertainty regarding recoverability, the Company has assessed the fair value as Nil and accordingly recognised a fair 
value loss of `0.01 Lakhs in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year, resulting in a Nil closing carrying amount; the fair value 
measurement is categorised as Level 3 under Ind AS 113 as it is based on unobservable inputs/significant management judgement, 
primarily the expected recoverability from the liquidation process, which has been considered Nil.

Derecognition of Investments

An investment is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the asset has been transferred, and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party.

On derecognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI (for FVOCI instruments) is transferred within equity to 
retained earnings, and for FVTPL instruments, the cumulative fair value change is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Investments

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence of impairment in its financial assets. For investments 
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss model prescribed by Ind AS 109.
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(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Non Current Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments  1.00  1.01 
Total Non Current Investments  1.00  1.01 

Current Investments

Investments in Mutual Funds  1.28  89.24 
Total Current Investments  1.28  89.24 

Total Carrying Value  2.28  90.25 

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Non Current Investments

Unquoted
Investments carried at Cost
Investments in Equity instruments of Subsidiary
Binny New Re-energy Limited
9,994 (9,994) Equity Shares of ` 10, each fully paid up  1.00  1.00 

Investments carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss
Investments in Equity instruments of Others
Tamilnadu Chromates and Chemicals Limited
30,000 (30,000) Equity Shares of ` 10, each fully paid up  0.01  0.01 
Total Non Current Investments  1.01  1.01 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -  - 
Market Value of quoted investments, Non Current  -  - 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments  1.01  1.01 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  0.01  - 
Reduction in the Fair Value of Assets held for sale  -  - 

Investments carried at Cost  1.00  1.00 
Investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss  -  0.01 

Current Investments

Quoted

Investments carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss

Investments in Mutual Funds
Equity Oriented Mutual Funds  1.28  89.24 
Total Current Investments  1.28  89.24 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  1.28  89.24 
Market Value of quoted investments, Non Current  1.28  89.24 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments  -  - 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -  - 
Reduction in the Fair Value of Assets held for sale  -  - 

Investments carried at Cost  -  - 
Investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss  1.28  89.24 

Method of Fair Valuation

Class of Investment Method
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Equity Oriented Mutual Funds - Carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss Quoted Price  1.28  89.24 
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2.4 Inventories

Accounting Policy

The Company’s inventories comprise land held for sale or development in the ordinary course of business. Such land is used either 
for direct sale by the Company or for development through third-party developers under joint development or similar arrangements. 
Land is recognised as inventory when it is acquired or otherwise held with the intention of sale, whether directly or after development.

Inventories are initially measured at cost, which includes the purchase consideration, registration and stamp duty, land conversion charges, 
borrowing costs (where applicable), and all other costs directly attributable to bringing the land to its present condition and location for sale.
The Company carries its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV), except for land that is revalued in accordance 
with the Company’s revaluation policy. Revalued land is carried at its fair value, determined based on independent valuation reports, 
less any impairment losses.
Land forming part of ongoing development arrangements continues to be classified as inventory until the related property or portion of 
land is sold to the end customer and control is transferred in accordance with Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Recognition

Land is recognised as inventory when

It is acquired or held for sale in the ordinary course of business or

It is contributed to a development arrangement with a developer for construction and eventual sale to end customers.

The cost of land includes the purchase cost, registration and stamp duty, directly attributable expenditures.

Subsequent Measurement

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
The net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary 
to make the sale.
Land forming part of a development arrangement remains as inventory until sale to end customers. The transfer of land to a developer 
for construction purposes does not, by itself, represent a sale or satisfaction of a performance obligation, as the developer is not 
considered a customer under Ind AS 115.
Any decline in the value of inventories below cost or revalued amount is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

Inventories are derecognised when the control of the land or developed property is transferred to the end customer, which generally 
occurs upon execution and registration of the sale deed or when other legally enforceable transfer documentation is completed.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Stock in Trade (Land)  61,921.55  54,060.54 
Stock (Others)  -    109.34 

Total  61,921.55  54,169.88 

2.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks, and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash on hand

Balances with banks in current accounts and

Short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, that are free from any encumbrances.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Balances with Banks

In current and deposit accounts  217.85  533.08 
Cash on Hand  0.23  290.77 
Total cash and cash equivalents  218.08  823.85 
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2.6 Other financial assets (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Non Current

Others (1)  631.12  631.12 
Total non current other financial assets  631.12  631.12 

Current

Security Deposits (1)  123.44  97.98 
Interest Receivable (1)  26.71  22.41 
Total current other financial assets  150.15  120.39 
Total other financial assets  781.27  751.51 
(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost  781.27  751.51 

2.7 Other Assets (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Non Current

Advances other than Capital Advances

Others

Deferred Rental Expenses  1.34  -   
Taxes paid under protest  1,096.30  1,032.05 

Total non current other assets  1,097.64  1,032.05 

2.7 Other Assets (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Current

Advances other than Capital Advances

Others

 Deferred Rental Expenses  1.72  -   

 Advance for Expenses  19.00  13.45 

 Advance to Suppliers  177.00  177.00 

 Advance to Related parties (1)  12,198.46  22,823.35 

 Advance to Staffs  103.87  -   

 GST Credit Receivable  446.66  404.54 

 Prepaid Expenses  6.64  10.98 

 Other Receivables  6,933.35  6,761.62 

Less: Allowances for credit losses  (3,816.32)  (359.29)

Total current other assets  16,070.38  29,831.64 

Total other assets  17,168.01  30,863.70 

(1) The Company’s Other Assets includes advances to related parties, as detailed below:
Advances to subsidiary amounting to `263.11 Lakhs (`263.11 Lakhs)
Advances to related party - Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited (MBDL)
The Company had advanced funds to Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited in earlier years. At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 
held on 9 October 2021, shareholders approved a resolution authorising that certain assets standing in the name of MBDL amouting to 
`5,540 Lakhs be transferred to Binny Limited in settlement of the advances outstanding, equivalent in value to the amount advanced.

Pursuant to the said resolution, MBDL is in the process of transferring the identified assets to Binny Limited. 

Until completion, the advance continues to be classified under Other Assets - Advances to Related Parties, and is considered 
recoverable in full based on the terms of the resolution and management’s assessment.
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Following are the loans to related parties, which are repayable on demand as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:               (In ` Lakhs)

Type of Borrower
Amount of  

Loan

Percentage to 
the total loan 

and advances in 
nature of loan

Subsidiaries  263.11 2%

Other related parties  11,954.35 98%

Following are the loans to related parties, which are repayable on demand as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:              (In ` Lakhs)

Type of Borrower
Amount of  

Loan

Percentage to 
the total loan 

and advances in 
nature of loan

Subsidiaries  263.11 1%

Other related parties  22,577.71 99%

2.8 Assets held for sale

Accounting Policy

An asset is recognised as held for sale only when all of the following conditions under Ind AS 105 are met

Management is committed to a plan to sell the asset, the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition, an active 
programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated, the sale is highly probable and is expected to be completed 
within twelve months, the asset is being actively marketed at a price reasonable in relation to its fair value and significant changes to 
the plan or withdrawal from the plan are unlikely.

Recognition

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts are expected to be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Classification as held for sale requires that the asset must 
be available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale must be highly probable, generally within twelve months of 
classification. Such assets are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and depreciation 
ceases from the date of classification. Any impairment loss arising from initial or subsequent measurement to fair value less costs to 
sell is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell is also recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent it does not exceed the cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. Assets classified 
as held for sale are presented separately as Assets Held for Sale under current assets in the Balance Sheet, and are not reclassified back 
to Property, Plant and Equipment unless the criteria for classification as held for sale are no longer met.

During the year, the company entered into an agreement for the sale of its building and plant & machinery. Accordingly, the Company 
classified non-current assets, comprising Plant & Machinery and a Factory Building, as Assets Held for Sale in accordance with Ind AS 
105 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Management has committed to a plan to sell these assets and 
initiated an active programme to identify prospective buyers. The assets are available for immediate sale in their present condition and 
are being marketed at prices that are reasonable in relation to their fair values. The sale process was initiated during the financial year 
2023-24 upon signing the agreement, with the assets made available for immediate sale at a price reasonable relative to current fair 
value. The disposal is expected to be completed through a direct transaction by March 31, 2025.

In accordance with the measurement requirements of Ind AS 105, these assets have been measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Depreciation on the classified assets has been discontinued from the date of their classification 
as held for sale. Any shortfall arising from the measurement to fair value less costs to sell has been recognised as an impairment loss 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss, while any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell has been recognised to the extent it 
does not exceed the cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. 

The assets held for sale include Plant & Machinery amounting to `765.83 lakhs and Factory Building amounting to `282.92 lakhs as 
at the reporting date, which have been presented separately under the head Assets Held for Sale in the Balance Sheet.

The Company has not recognised any liabilities directly associated with these assets. Further, no assets previously classified as held 
for sale have been reclassified back to Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. The fair value less costs to sell of the assets has 
been determined based on quotations from market participants.

Impairment of Assets

Accounting Policy

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing is required for certain assets, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount in 
accordance with Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets.
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An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The fair value less costs of disposal is determined based on market-observable inputs, recent transactions for similar assets, or 
valuations by qualified independent valuers, as applicable.

Recognition

If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset’s carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. Such reduction represents an impairment loss, which is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reversal

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

During the year, on account of reclassification of certain assets to held for sale, the difference between the carrying amount and fair 
value less costs to sell has been recognized as impairment loss, as detailed in Note No. 2.21.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Assets held for sale  906.00  -   

Total assets held for sale  906.00  -   

2.9 Financial Instruments

Accounting Policy

Initial Recognition

The Company recognises a financial asset or financial liability when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value on the date of recognition, except for those measured at amortised 
cost (where transaction price approximates fair value).

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities, which are not 
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at the trade date, being the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on their classification as per Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.
Financial instruments primarily include investments, bank balances and deposits, and financial liabilities such as lease liabilities and 
borrowings.

a) Financial Assets

(i) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets, and the contractual terms give rise to SPPI cash flows.

Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established.

(iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

This includes investments in mutual funds, which are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis.

Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Other Income for the period in which they arise.
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b) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Financial liabilities of the Company include trade payables, lease liabilities, and other financial obligations.

Interest expense on such liabilities is recognised using the EIR method and presented as Finance Costs in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

c) Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate financial statements, in accordance with Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial 
Statements.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

A financial asset is derecognised when

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset expire or The asset has been transferred and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires.The resulting 
gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Fair value is determined using valuation techniques appropriate in the circumstances, and where possible, with reference to observable 
market inputs.

Methods include:

Quoted market prices (for mutual funds and listed equity instruments),

Discounted cash flow techniques (for deposits and loans), and

Market-based valuation models (for unquoted equity investments).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures (Levels 1, 2, and 3), along with carrying values and classification of financial assets and liabilities as 
Amortised Cost, FVOCI, or FVTPL, are provided below

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment on financial assets using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model, as required by Ind AS 109.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost (such as fixed deposits, loans, and other advances), the Company recognises 12-month 
ECLs, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case lifetime ECLs are recognised.

ECLs are estimated based on historical loss experience, credit risk assessment, and forward-looking information such as economic 
trends and counterparty creditworthiness. Changes in ECL estimates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under Other 
Expenses or Other Income (for reversals).

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis in the Balance Sheet only when the Company has a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

Presentation and Disclosures

Financial instruments are presented based on their substance and contractual terms, in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial 
Instruments: Presentation.

Disclosures on the carrying amounts, fair values, classification, and fair value hierarchy levels of financial assets and liabilities are 
provided below

The classification of financial assets and liabilities into Amortised Cost, FVOCI, and FVTPL categories

The valuation techniques and key assumptions used in determining fair values are presented below:
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Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2024 are as follows:	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Amortised 

cost

Financial assets / liabilities 
at fair value through profit 

or loss

Financial assets / liabilities at 
fair value through OCI

Total 
carrying 
value

Total fair 
valueDesignated 

upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Equity 
instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 2.6)  218.08  -    -    -    -    218.08  218.08 

Investments (Refer to note 2.4)

Equity instruments  1.00  -    -    -    -    1.00  1.00 

Mutual funds  -    -    1.28  -    -    1.28  1.28 

Other financial assets (Refer to note 2.7)  781.27  -    -    -    -    781.27  781.27 

Total  1,000.35  -    1.28  -    -    1,001.63  1,001.63 

Liabilities:

Borrowings (Refer to note 2.10)  53.93  -    -    -    -    53.93  53.93 

Lease Liabilities (Refer to note 2.2)  50.83  -    -    -    -    50.83  50.83 

Other financial liabilities (Refer to note 2.11)  745.30  -    -    -    -    745.30  745.30 

Total  850.06  -    -    -    -    850.06  850.06 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2023 are as follows:	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars

Amortised 
cost

Financial assets / liabilities 
at fair value through profit 

or loss

Financial assets / liabilities at 
fair value through OCI

Total 
carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Equity 
instruments 
designated 
upon initial 
recognition

Mandatory

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 2.6)  823.85  -    -    -    -    823.85  823.85 

Investments (Refer to note 2.4)

Equity instruments  1.00  0.01  -    -    -    1.01  1.01 

Mutual funds  -    -    89.24  -    -    89.24  89.24 

Other financial assets (Refer to note 2.7)  751.51  -    -    -    -    751.51  751.51 

Total  1,576.35  0.01  89.24  -    -    1,665.60  1,665.60 

Liabilities:

Borrowings (Refer to note 2.10)  1,991.25  -    -    -    -    1,991.25  1,991.25 

Lease Liabilities (Refer to note 2.2)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other financial liabilities (Refer to note 2.11)  1,333.66  -    -    -    -    1,333.66  1,333.66 

Total  3,324.92  -    -    -    -    3,324.92  3,324.92 
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idential assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indeirectly (i.e. derived from price)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following table shows the valuation techniques 
used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance sheet, as well as the 
significant unobservable inputs used.

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2024 is as follows: (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting 
period using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investments (Refer to note 2.3)

Mutual funds  1.28  1.28  -  - 

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2023 is as follows: (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2023

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting 
period using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investments (Refer to note 2.3)

Mutual funds  89.24  89.24  -  - 

Equity Instruments			   0.01  -    -    0.01 

Majority of investments of the company are fair valued based on level 1 inputs. These investments include investments in equity 
oriented mutual funds.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary 
focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate 
foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic 
of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an entity’s cash flows and/or fair values will change because market interest rates move. The Company 
is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its borrowings. However, since the borrowings carry fixed interest rates, the Company 
is not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk arising from changes in market interest rates. Accordingly, no interest rate sensitivity 
analysis has been presented as at the reporting date.
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Exposure to interest rate risk:

The exposure of the company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:	
(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Fixed rate instruments:

Financial assets  -    -   

Financial liabilities  53.93  1,991.25 

Fixed rate instruments exposed to interest rate risks  53.93  1,991.25 

Variable rate instruments:

Financial borrowings  -    -   

Variable rate instruments exposed to interest rate risks  -    -   

Market risk

The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure, as all revenues, expenses, receivables, payables, loans and investments 
are denominated in Indian Rupees. Accordingly, the Company is not exposed to market risk. Therefore, no foreign currency sensitivity 
analysis has been presented.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in a financial loss to the Company. 
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk amounts to `781.27 lakhs and `751.51 lakhs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 
2023, respectively. The Company does not have any trade receivables or unbilled revenue as at the reporting dates.

Credit risk exposure

The Company’s credit risk arises solely from other receivables, as the Company does not have any trade receivables or unbilled 
revenue. Other receivables mainly comprise advances and recoverable balances from various counterparties within India. These 
balances are unsecured.

The Company considers amounts outstanding for more than one year to have a significant increase in credit risk, and such balances 
have been impaired during the current year based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model prescribed under Ind AS 109.

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss recognised on other receivables for the year ended March 31, 2024 is `3,456.82 lakhs

The Company continues to monitor the creditworthiness of counterparties and applies appropriate ECL provisioning based on ageing, 
historical default experience, and forward-looking information.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and the expected credit loss for financial assets as at March 31, 2024 and March 
31, 2023 are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at  
March 31, 2023

Particulars
Gross Carrying 

value
Provision

Gross Carrying 
value

Provision

Other receivables (Refer note no. 2.7)(1)  6,896.68  3,816.11  6,761.62  359.29 

Total  6,896.68  3,816.11  6,761.62  359.29 

(1) The company recognises 12 month credit allowances method to estimate the expected credit loss.

The reconciliation of credit losses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:		  (In ̀  Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning  359.29  359.29 

Impairment loss recognised / (reversed), net  3,456.82  -   

Amounts written off

Total  3,816.11  359.29 
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is minimal, as the Company places its surplus funds only with banks and financial institutions.

The Company’s investments primarily comprise liquid mutual fund units.

These risks are continuously monitored in accordance with the Company’s overall risk management framework.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company manages 
its liquidity risk by maintaining adequate levels of cash and cash equivalents, monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and ensuring 
the availability of funds to meet its operational and financial commitments.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash and cash equivalents and cash flows generated from operations. The Company 
does not have any borrowings as at the reporting dates, and management believes that the existing working capital is sufficient to meet 
its current operational requirements.

"As at March 31, 2024, the Company had working capital of ̀ 37,357.81 lakhs, which includes cash and cash equivalents of ̀ 218.08 lakhs, and 
current investments of `1.28 lakhs."

As at March 31, 2023, the Company had working capital of `38,464.24 lakhs, which includes cash and cash equivalents of `823.85 
lakhs, and current investments of `89.24 lakhs.

The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:     (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Carrying 
amount

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total

Lease Liabilities (Refer to Note 2.2)  50.83  27.90  34.02  -    -    61.92 

Borrowings (Refer to Note 2.11)  53.93  26.20  27.73  -    -    53.93 

Other financial liabilities on an 
undiscounted basis (Refer to Note 2.12)

 745.30  291.74  450.00  -    3.56  745.30 

The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:   (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Carrying 
amount

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total

Lease Liabilities (Refer to Note 2.2)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Borrowings (Refer to Note 2.11)  1,991.25  1,937.33  53.93  -    -    1,991.25 

Other financial liabilities on an 
undiscounted basis (Refer to Note 2.12)

 1,333.66  433.66  900.00  -    -    1,333.66 

2.10 Equity

Accounting Policy

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity share capital. The amount received in respect of the issue of ordinary shares is recognised in 
share capital and securities premium, as applicable, net of any directly attributable issue costs.

Description of Reserves

Capital redemption reserve

In accordance with Section 69 of the Indian Companies Act, 2013, the Company creates capital redemption reserve equal to the 
nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation from general reserve / retained earnings.

Capital reserve on Demerger

As per Sanction scheme of arrangement, certain assets and Liabilities have been transferred to resulting companies. The reserve 
denotes the excess of liabilities over assets transferred to the resulting companies. Capital reserve is not available for distribution to 
the share holders.
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Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

Securities premium

The amount received in excess of the par value of equity shares has been classified as securities premium.

Revaluation Reserve

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of land on the balance sheet date measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income.

Other Components of Equity

Other components of equity include remeasurement of net defined benefit liability / asset, changes on fair valuation.

(In ` Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Authorised

Equity shares, `5/- par value

2,28,20,000 (2,28,20,000) Equity shares  1,141.00  1,141.00 

9.75% Cumulative redeemable preference shares, `5/- par value

11,80,000 (11,80,000) Preference shares  59.00  59.00 

9.% Cumulative redeemable preference shares, `5/- par value

54,20,00,000 (54,20,00,000) Preference shares  27,100.00  27,100.00 

Issued, subscribed and Paid-Up

Equity shares, `5/- par value (1)

2,23,19,410 (2,23,19,410) Equity shares fully paid up  1,115.97  1,115.97 

 1,115.97  1,115.97 

The Company has issued equity shares having a par value of INR 5 each. Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of 
the Company as of the date of the shareholders meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to 
vote in the shareholders meeting. The equity shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, as proposed 
by the Board of Directors and subjected to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholding of Promoter

The details of shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Promoter Name No. of Shares
% of total  

shares
% change during 

the year

Nandagopal M  1,00,12,110 44.86% 0.00%

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited  1,10,749 0.50% 18.48%

Arthos Breweries Limited  16,15,017 7.24% 0.00%

Arvind Nandagopal  8,00,000 3.58% 0.00%

Tiger Farms and Enterprises Private limited  5,750 0.03% 0.00%

The details of shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Promoter Name No. of Shares
% of total  

shares
% change during 

the year

Nandagopal M  1,00,12,110 44.86% 0.00%

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited  42,36,440 18.98% 0.00%

Arthos Breweries Limited  16,15,017 7.24% 0.00%

Arvind Nandagopal  8,00,000 3.58% 0.00%

Tiger Farms and Enterprises Private limited  5,750 0.03% 0.00%
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The details of shares holders holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Promoter Name
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number of 
Shares

% held
Number of 

Shares
% held

Nandagopal M  1,00,12,110 44.86%  1,00,12,110 44.86%

Arthos Breweries Limited  16,15,017 7.24%  16,15,017 7.24%

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited  -   0.00%  42,36,440 18.98%

Saranga Investments and Consultancy Private Limited  41,25,691 18.48%  -   0.00%

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 
are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number of 
Shares

Amount
Number of 

Shares
Amount

As at beginning of the period  2,23,19,410  1,115.97  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

Add: Shares issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

As at end of the period  2,23,19,410  1,115.97  2,23,19,410  1,115.97 

2.11 Borrowings (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
Non Current
Secured
Term Loans
(i) From Other Parties (1)  27.73  53.93 
Total non current borrowings  27.73  53.93 

Current
Secured
Term Loans
(i) From Other Parties (1)  26.20  1,937.33 
Total current borrowings  26.20  1,937.33 
Total borrowings  53.93  1,991.25 

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Loan Availed from Sundaram Finance Limited

The Company has availed vehicle loans from Sundaram Finance Limited for the purchase of motor vehicles used in its operations. The 
loans are secured by hypothecation of the respective vehicles financed under each loan agreement. These borrowings are classified as 
secured term loans and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over periods ranging from 36 to 59 months, depending on the 
specific vehicle financed.

The loans carry fixed interest rates as stipulated in the respective sanction letters and are repayable through monthly instalments 
comprising principal and interest. The repayment schedule of the loans extends over 36 months, 47 months, and 59 months, with 
each loan amortised separately. The vehicles financed serve as the exclusive security for the corresponding loan, and ownership of 
such vehicles will be transferred fully to the Company upon completion of all repayments.

The loans were obtained solely for the acquisition of vehicles and not for working capital or any other general purpose. The Company 
continues to service its borrowings as per the repayment schedules agreed with Sundaram Finance Limited.

Loan Availed from SPR Construction Private Limited

The Company has availed a loan facility amounting to ` 4,999.73 lakhs from SPR Construction Private Limited. The loan is unsecured 
and repayable in twelve equal quarterly instalments, commencing from March 2021 in accordance with the terms mutually agreed 
between the parties.



90

BINNY LIMITED

The facility has been availed for general corporate purposes. The borrowing bears interest at the rate(s) specified in the underlying 
agreement and is repayable in accordance with the approved repayment schedule. No specific security or guarantee has been 
provided in respect of this facility.

As at the Balance Sheet date, the non-current portion of the loan represents the amount of principal due for repayment after 12 months, 
while the current portion, representing instalments due within the next 12 months, has been presented under current liabilities.

There have been no defaults in the repayment of principal or interest during the current or previous financial years. The Company’s 
exposure to interest rate risk on these loans is minimal, as they carry fixed rates of interest.

The carrying amount of the borrowings approximates their fair value, since the loans bear market-based interest rates and have 
relatively short to medium term maturities. These borrowings do not carry any restrictive covenants that could adversely impact the 
company’s financial position or operations.

2.12 Other financial liabilities (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Non Current

Others

Others (1)  450.00  900.00 

Total non current other financial liabilities  450.00  900.00 

Current

Others

Compensation to employees (1)  90.15  122.56 

Accrued Expenses (1)(2)  205.16  311.11 

Total current other financial liabilities  295.30  433.66 

Total other financial liabilities  745.30  1,333.66 
(1) Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
(2) Accrued expenses primarily relate to legal and professional charges, repairs and maintenance, house keeping expenses and rent

2.13 Provisions

Accounting Policy

A provision is recognised when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation, it is probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an out-
flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Non Current

Provision for employee Benefits  19.87  71.20 

Total non current provisions  19.87  71.20 

Current

 Provision for employee Benefits  41.10  43.93 

Total current provisions  41.10  43.93 

Total provisions  60.97  115.13 
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2.14 Other Liabilities (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Current

Advances against sale of Investments (1)  314.37  50.00 

Other advances  993.38  973.38 

Advance from customers  34,548.69  38,902.57 

Others

Statutory dues

Withholding taxes and others  32.14  54.31 

Goods and service tax  7.41  48.59 

Others  774.14  79.03 

Total other current liabilities  36,670.13  40,107.88 

Total other liabilities  36,670.13  40,107.88 

(1) The Company has received an advance amount towards the proposed sale of its equity investment in Binny New Re Energy Limited 
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed upon with the buyer. The transfer of shares and completion of the transaction are 
expected to be effected upon fulfilment of the necessary conditions.

Pending completion of the transaction, the amount received has been classified as an advance under Other Liabilities in the financial 
statements as at the reporting date. The Company expects the transaction to be completed in the subsequent financial year.

Advance from joint developer

The Company has entered in to Joint Development Agreement (JDA) for development of land area of 63.89 acres into a Township 
with M/s. SPR Construction Private Limited. As per the Second amended restated Joint Agreement dated 06-08-2025, the company has 
received a sum of ` 623.51 Crs as on 06-08-2025,which includes a sum of ` 337.13 Crs received as Advance

2.15 Current tax liabilities

The Current Tax Assets and Liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows: 	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023

Income tax assets  2,559.59  4,279.32 

Current income tax liabilities  7,416.14  8,327.28 

Net Current income tax assets / (liabilities) at the end  (4,856.55)  (4,047.96)

2.16 Revenue recognition

Accounting Policy

Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers or joint venture partners, in an amount 
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange, in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115 - Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers.
The Company’s primary sources of revenue include the sale of parcels of land, rental income from investment properties, and 
participation in real estate development projects undertaken through joint venture arrangements. Under such arrangements, the 
Company contributes land to a developer responsible for construction, marketing, and sale of the developed property. In return, the 
Company is entitled to a share of the sale proceeds or a fixed consideration, depending on the specific terms of the joint venture 
agreement.

Revenue from Rentals

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement in accordance with the respective lease 
contracts. The Company recognises rental revenue when the right to receive payment is established, reflecting the pattern of benefits 
derived from the leased property.
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Revenue from Sale of Parcels of Land

Revenue from the sale of parcels of land is recognised at the point in time when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer, which is generally upon execution and registration of the Sale Deed. This timing reflects the transfer of 
control of the land as required by Ind AS 115.

Revenue from Joint Venture Development agreements

Under the Joint Development Arrangements model, the Company’s performance obligation relates to transferring its share of land 
rights in the project to ultimate buyers.

Although the land is handed over to the developer for the purpose of construction and development, such transfer does not, by itself, 
constitute satisfaction of a performance obligation, as the developer is not considered a customer under Ind AS 115 and control over 
the land has not yet transferred to the end customer.

Accordingly, the Company recognises revenue only when the developed property (or the portion attributable to the Company’s share 
of land) is sold to the end customer and the sale deed is executed.

At that point, control over the relevant portion of land and constructed area is transferred, and the Company’s right to consideration 
becomes enforceable.

Revenue is therefore recognised at a point in time, measured with reference to the consideration receivable as per the terms of the JDA.

Contract Modification and Impact on Revenue Recognition

During the financial year 2025-26, the Company and its joint-venture partner amended the commercial terms of their existing 
development arrangement on 6 August 2025, prior to the approval of these financial statements. The amendment replaced the earlier 
revenue-share model, under which the Company was entitled to a specified percentage of the sale proceeds from each unit sold by 
the developer, with a fixed-consideration model whereby the Company will receive a predetermined amount in full settlement of its 
entitlement from the project.

The Company evaluated this amendment in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
and concluded that it constitutes a contract modification as described in paragraphs 20 and 21 of the Standard. The modification 
does not introduce any additional or distinct goods or services and continues to relate to the same performance obligation, namely 
the transfer of the Company’s share of land rights in the project to end customers. Accordingly, the modification has been treated as 
a continuation of the existing contract, and the accounting has been adjusted prospectively.

In accordance with Ind AS 115, the Company has Updated the transaction price to the fixed amount stipulated in the amended 
contract;

Applied the cumulative catch-up approach to reflect the effect of the change in transaction price on revenue recognised to date; and

Continued to recognise revenue over time in proportion to the satisfaction of its performance obligation, which is linked to the sale of 
developed property to end customers and the corresponding transfer of control to those customers."

Revenue under the amended arrangement is therefore recognised on a measure-of-progress basis, determined with reference to the 
extent of development progress and sale of units to end customers during the reporting period.

The above modification represents a change in the contractual terms and not in the Company’s accounting policy. Accordingly, the 
effect of this amendment has been accounted for prospectively in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, with 
no restatement of comparative figures.

The Company has made appropriate disclosures in accordance with paragraphs 116 to 127 of Ind AS 115, covering the nature of 
the modification, the method used to measure progress, and the significant judgments involved in determining the timing of revenue 
recognition.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Revenue from Joint Development Agreement  3,418.82  14,209.78 
Revenue from sale of land  2,885.69  246.00 
Total revenue from operations  6,304.51  14,455.78 
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2.17 Other income

Accounting Policy

Interest Income

The Company earns interest income from fixed deposits with banks. Interest income is accrued over time based on the amount 
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest. The Company recognises such income in the financial statements as and when they 
accrue.

Lease Rent

Lease rent income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 116 - 
Leases, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the leased asset is diminished.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Interest income on Financial asset carried at amortized cost

Deposits with banks  4.68  3.02 
Income on Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on mutual funds  31.55  -   
Lease Rent  -    225.12 
Miscellaneous income, net  1,375.68  757.26 

Total other income  1,411.91  985.40 

2.18 Purchases of stock in trade

The Company is engaged in the real estate business, and the purchases of stock-in-trade represent the acquisition of land intended for 
sale in the ordinary course of business.

Such purchases include the cost of land acquisition, stamp duty, registration charges, and other directly attributable expenses incurred 
to bring the land to its present condition and location for intended sale.

No other trading goods are purchased by the Company. Accordingly, the entire balance under Purchases of Stock-in-Trade relates 
exclusively to land acquisitions during the year.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Purchases of stock in trade  9,057.48  26,765.00 

Total purchases of stock in trade  9,057.48  26,765.00 

2.19 Changes in inventories of stock in trade

The changes in stock in trade for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows: 	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

A) Inventories at the end of the year

Stock in Trade  61,921.55  54,060.54 
Total inventories at the end  61,921.55  54,060.54 

B) Inventories at the beginning of the year

Stock in Trade  54,060.54  28,740.29 
Total inventories at the beginning  54,060.54  28,740.29 

C) Others

Others (1)  109.34  -   
Less : Provision for Inventory write down  (109.34)  -   
Total other inventories  -    -   

Total changes in stock in trade  (7,861.01)  (25,320.25)
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(1) Represents stock transferred from Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited pursuant to the resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting. As the stock has not been sold till date and its value is considered to have diminished over time, the Company has 
recognised a full provision for the same during the current financial year.

2.20 Employee benefits

Accounting Policy

Employee benefits are recognised in the financial statements when the employee has rendered service in exchange for such benefits 
and the Company has a present obligation to make the payment, either legally or constructively, as a result of past events.

Employee benefits are classified into short-term benefits, post-employment benefits (comprising defined contribution and defined 
benefit plans), and other long-term benefits.

Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, ex-gratia, and compensated absences expected to be settled wholly 
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service.

These benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is rendered. A liability is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service.

Provident Fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from the government-administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined 
contribution plan under Indian law. Both the employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund at a 
specified percentage of the employee’s salary, in accordance with the provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952.The Company’s obligation with respect to this plan is limited to the amount of contributions made. The 
contributions are remitted regularly to the Government authorities, and the Company has no further obligation for future fund shortfalls 
or performance of the fund beyond its statutory contribution. Accordingly, the Company recognises such contributions as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period during which the employees render the related service.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contributions to provident fund and other defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period during which the employees render the related services.

Once the contributions are made, the Company has no further payment obligations. The Company’s liability in respect of such plans 
is limited to the amount of contribution required to be made as per the applicable laws and rules.

Contributions payable to the provident fund are recognised as liabilities when due and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
on an accrual basis.

Defined Benefit plans

The Company’s obligation towards gratuity constitutes a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the Balance Sheet for defined 
benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date, less the fair value of plan assets, if any.

The defined benefit obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, as mandated by Ind AS 19. The PUC 
method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately 
to build up the final obligation.

The valuation is carried out by an independent qualified actuary at each Balance Sheet date.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates 
of government securities that have terms consistent with the estimated term of the obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses, arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised immediately in 
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 
Employee Benefits Expense.
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The details of the defined benefit retirement amount recognized in the financial Statements as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 
are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the beginning  18.32  24.45 
Service cost  5.02  0.93 

Interest expense  1.32  1.66 

Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains) / losses  8.04  (2.24)
Employee contribution  -    -   
Benefits paid  -    (6.48)
Benefit obligations at the end  32.70  18.32 

Change in plan assets - -

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning - -

Interest Income - -

Remeasurements - Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income - -

Employee contribution - -

Employer contribution - -

Benefits paid - -

Fair value of plan asstes at the end - -

Reconciliation of present value of obligation and fair value of plan assets
(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Net defined benefit assets  -    -   

Total employee benefit assets (Non Current)  -    -   

Net defined benefit liabilities  32.70  18.32 

Total employee benefit liabilities  32.70  18.32 

Net liabilities:  32.70  18.32 

Non Current  10.63  8.54 

Current  22.07  9.78 

Total defined benefit liabilities  32.70  18.32 

The amount for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss under employee 
benefit expense are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Service cost  5.02  0.93 
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset  1.32  1.66 

Net Cost  6.34  2.59 
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The amount for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income are 
as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Actuarial (gains) / losses  8.04  (2.24)

 8.04  (2.24)

Breakup of actuarial (gains) / losses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:
(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions  0.09  (0.32)
(Gain) / loss from change in experience assumptions  7.95  (1.92)

 8.04  (2.24)

The weighted - average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Discount Rate (in %)(1) 7.09 7.2

Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels (in %)(2) 5 5

Attrition rate (in %)(3) 5 5

Retirement age 58 58

Mortality table IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate

(1) Discount rate for this valuation is based on government bonds having similar term to duration of liabilities. Due to lack of a deep 
and secondary bond market in India, government bond yields are used to arrive at the discount rate.

(2) The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the company, considering factors such as, the company's past 
compensation revision trends, inflation in respective markets and management's estimate of future salary increases.

(3) Attrition rate considered as the management's estimate based on the past long term trend of employee turnover in the Company. The 
tenure has been considered taking into account the past long term trend of employees' average remaining service life which reflects 
the average estimated term of post employment benefit obligations.

The weighted - average assumptions used to determine net periodinc benefit cost for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 
2023 are as follows:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Discount Rate (in %) 7.09 7.2

Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels (in %) 5 5

These defined benefit plans expose the company to actuarial risk and other risk which are set out below:

Investment risk

The company has not made any contributions to the funded plans
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Market Risk (Discount rate)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount rate 
reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & 
vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed 
to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Longevity Risk 

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after . Typically for the benefits paid 
on or before the retirement age , the longevity risk is not very material.

Actuarial Risk

Salary Increase Assumption : Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation , will result in increase to the 
Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected

Attrition/Withdrawal Assumption : If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rates, the benefits will be paid ear-
lier than expected. Similarly if the actual withdrawal rates are lower than assumed, the benefits will be paid later than expected. The 
impact of this will depend on the demography of the company and the financials assumptions.

Regulatory Risk

Any Changes to the current Regulations by the Government, will increase (in most cases) or Decrease the obligation which is not 
anticapated. Sometimes, the increase is many fold which will impact the financials quite significantly.

The sensitivity of significant assumptions used for valuation of defined benefit obligation is as follows:	 (In ` Lakhs)

Impact from
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

1% increase 1% decrease

Discount rate  (0.82)  0.92 

Weighted average rate of increase in compensation level  0.94  (0.76)

Attrition rate  (0.07)  0.07 

Sensitivity analysis is carried out by PUC method by changing only the respective assumption and keeping all other assumption same 
as that used to estimate the liability. The impact given is the difference between the liability as on the date of the valuation and the 
liability with the given assumptions changes by the stated amount. The limitation of this method is that it considers the change in the 
respective assumptions in isolation without affecting the other assumptions which in reality may not be the case. Nonetheless, the 
methodology gives the fair idea of the impact on the liability in the case the given assumptions changes.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:	 (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars

Within 1 year  22.07 

1-2 year  1.24 

2-3 year  0.47 

3-4 year  0.52 

4-5 year  2.28 

5-10 years  5.42 
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Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of with-
drawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal retirement date or to provide termination benefits 
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Salaries and Bonus  839.19  412.57 
Contribution to Provident and other funds  53.94  31.34 
Staff welfare  23.84  8.60 

Total employee benefit expenses  916.97  452.50 

2.21 Finance costs (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Interest expenses  22.46  639.58 
Interest on lease liabilities  8.75  -   

Total employee benefit expenses  31.21  639.58 

2.22 Other Expenses (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Rent  11.60  -   

Business Promotion  10.86  1,043.55 

Commission Expenses  279.97  10.00 

Communication Expenses  2.52  1.43 

Donation  4.15  1.00 

Insurance  18.68  13.24 

Office Maintanence Expenses  154.14  7.08 

Power and fuel  33.54  2.93 

Postage and Courier  0.64  0.16 

Printing and Stationery  10.01  1.85 

Professional, Consultancy & Legal fees  913.08  254.69 

Rates and Taxes  405.16  983.67 

Repairs and maintenance  82.99  8.61 

Security Charges  52.93  -   

Penalties  614.86  -   

Sitting Fees  1.10  2.20 

Travelling and Conveyance  78.87  33.20 

Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit  25.00  10.50 

Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility  122.86  82.26 

Provision for diminution in the value of investments  0.01  -   

Loss on Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on mutual funds  -    0.52 

Impairment of Assets  1,819.21  -   

Impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model  3,456.82  -   

Miscellaneous expenses  82.26  163.55 

Total other expenses  8,181.25  2,620.41 
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2.23 Earnings Per Equity Share

Accounting Policy

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had 
the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential 
equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are 
determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share 
splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

The following is the computation of basic earnings per equity share:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Profit for the year (in ` Lakhs)  (2,423.85)  5,938.10 
Basic earnings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares outstanding  2,23,19,410  2,23,19,410 
Basic earnings per equity share (`)  (10.86)  26.61 

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share and 
computation of diluted earnings per equity share:

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Profit for the year (in ` Lakhs)  (2,423.85)  5,938.10 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used in computing in basic earnings per 
equity share

 2,23,19,410  2,23,19,410 

Effect of dilutive common equivalent shares - share options outstanding  -    -   
Weighted average number of equity shares and common equivalent shares outstanding used in 
computing diluted earnings per equity share

 2,23,19,410  2,23,19,410 

Diluted earnings per equity share (`)  (10.86)  26.61 

2.24 Income taxes

Accounting policy

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income or equity, in which case it is recognised in those respective 
statements.

Income Tax

Current tax represents the amount of income tax payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year.

It is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the Income-tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws 
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Current tax relating to prior periods is recognised as an adjustment to the amount of current tax in the period in which the assessment 
or decision is finalised.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
in the financial statements.



100

BINNY LIMITED

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised for 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits, and carry-forward of unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable income will be available against which these can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for

temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit at the time of the transaction and

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries or associates when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
can be controlled and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
Balance Sheet date and that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

The effect of a change in tax rates or tax laws on deferred tax balances is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period 
that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it 
becomes probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Measurement and Presentation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and if the deferred tax balances relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items 
recognised directly in equity or OCI, in which case the tax is also recognised in those statements.

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises: (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Current taxes  835.00  4,109.17 
Deferred taxes  (1,112.39)  (191.67)
Income tax expenses  (277.39)  3,917.50 

Income tax expense in the statement of other comprehensive income comprises: (In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Deferred taxes  2.02  -   
Income tax expenses  2.02  -   

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before 
income taxes is as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Profit before income taxes  (2,701.24)  9,855.59 
Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 34.94%
Computed expected tax expense  -    3,443.54 
Effect of non-deductible expenses  835.00  665.63 
Income tax expense  835.00  4,109.17 

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2024 is 25.17% and for the year ended March 31, 
2023 is 34.94%.

The income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 includes provisions of ̀ 835.00 and ̀ 4,109.17 lakhs 
respectively.	
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The details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:
(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Income tax assets  2,559.59  4,279.32 
Current income tax liabilities  7,416.14  8,327.28 

Net Current income tax assets / (liabilities) at the end  (4,856.55)  (4,047.96)

The gross movement in the current income tax assets / (liabilities) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows:
(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Net current income tax assets / (liabilities) at the beginning  (4,047.96)  (1,685.07)
Income tax paid  26.41  1,746.28 
Current income tax expense  835.00  4,109.17 

Net current income tax assets / (liabilities) at the end  (4,856.55)  (4,047.96)

The movement in gross deferred income tax assets and liabilities (before set off) for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars
Carrying Value as 
of April 1, 2023

Changes through 
Profit and Loss

Changes 
through OCI

Carrying Vaue as of 
March 31, 2024

Deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment  180.45  480.22  -    660.67 

Asstes held for Sale  -    (228.04)  -    (228.04)

Right of use asset  -    (11.33)  -    (11.33)

Investments  -    0.00  -    0.00 

Inventories  -    27.52  -    27.52 

Lease liabilities  -    (12.79)  -    (12.79)

Compensated absences  -    (13.32)  (2.02)  (15.35)

Other receivables  -    870.14  -    870.14 

Total deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)  180.45  1,112.39  (2.02)  1,290.82 

The movement in gross deferred income tax assets and liabilities (before set off) for the year ended March 31, 2023 is as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Carrying Value as 
of April 1, 2022

Changes through 
Profit and Loss

Changes 
through OCI

Carrying Vaue as of 
March 31, 2023

Deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment  (11.22)  191.67  -  180.45 

Total deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)  (11.22)  191.67  -  180.45 

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31 2024
Year ended 

March 31 2023

Deferred income tax assets after set-off  1,558.33  -   

Deferred income tax liabilities after set-off  (267.51)  180.45 
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2.25 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Accounting Policy

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises 
from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Contingent Liabilities:

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts (1)      37,763.56      16,894.65 

Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remain to be executed on capital contracts and not provided for                -                  -   

(1) As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 claims against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of Income tax matters, 
Goods and Service Tax and Wealth tax amounts to ` 37,738.56 and ` 16,869.65

The Assessing Officer has re-assessed the Company’s wealth-tax for Assessment Years 1993-94 to 2000-01 and 2005-06 to 2010-
11 by reinstating the demands raised earlier, with an observation that the demand is liable to be modified based on the outcome of 
the valuation report. The Company has filed appeals against the said demands and the matters are pending before the Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal (ITAT), Chennai.

Disputed demands relating to Income-tax and Goods and Services Tax (GST) matters are pending before the relevant income-tax and 
GST authorities/appellate forums. The Company has contested these demands and the amounts involved are disclosed as contingent 
liabilities to the extent applicable.

Amounts paid to statutory authorities against the above tax claims aggregated to ` 1,096.30 lakhs and ` 1,032.05 lakhs as at March 
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively.

Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, 
in respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required 
and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. Based on the advice from the Company's legal 
counsel, management does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial position. 
The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

The Company received an order from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) dated 31 July 2024, which has been challenged 
before the Hon’ble Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT). SAT has stayed the operation of the SEBI order. Without prejudice to its legal 
rights, the Company has undertaken/undertakes certain compliance actions, including (i) execution and registration of sale deeds for 
the Chengalpattu lands, and (ii) in respect of Valasaravakkam land (12.43 acres), pursuing development through a joint development 
arrangement (JDA) and entering into a term sheet with M/s Osian Construction Private Limited; the draft JDA is proposed to be placed 
before for shareholder approval. The Company informed SAT of the proposed approach at the hearing held on 06 November 2025; 
the matter has been posted for final hearing on 16 January 2026. The Company has also filed an affidavit of compliance before SAT 
in relation to the above actions/instructions.

2.26 Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 Operating Segments prescribes the principles for reporting information about an entity’s operating segments and for related 
disclosures regarding products and services, geographical areas and major customers. The Company’s operations predominantly 
comprise sale of land/land rights and sale of properties developed under a joint development arrangement (JDA) model.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are the same as those applied in the preparation of the financial statements, 
as set out in the significant accounting policies. Segment revenue and expenses are measured on the same basis as used for internal 
reporting.

The Company derives revenue primarily from:

Sale of land, and

Sale of developed properties under Joint Development Arrangements (JDA).
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Segment information and measure of segment performance

Since the Company has a single reportable segment, the segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities are the same as those disclosed 
in the financial statements.

The accounting policies of the segment are the same as those described in the significant accounting policies.

Information about the products for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Sale of land       2,885.69          246.00 

Sale through properties developed under JDA model       3,418.82      14,209.78 

Total revenue from operations       6,304.51     14,455.78 

The Company operates only in India; accordingly, all revenue and non-current assets relate to India.

Significant Clients

Revenue from one customer amounted to ` 2,682 lakhs (42.54% of total revenue) during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Reconciliation

Since the Company has a single reportable segment, segment totals reconcile to the entity totals presented in the financial statements.

2.27 Related party transactions

List of related parties

(In %)

Name of subsidiaries
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Binny New Re Energy Limited 99.94 99.94 

List of other related parties

Particulars Nature of Relationship

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited Entity under common control

Binny Mills Limited Entity under common control

Mira Textiles and Industries Limited Entity under common control

List of key management personnel

Non whole time directors

Shri. M Nandagopal

Shri S. Jagadeesan (Independent Director) (resigned on February 14, 2024)

Smt. Nilima Sathya (Independent Director)

Shri Durai Raja (Independent Director) (resigned on January 19, 2024)

Shri Rajeev Bhakshi (Independent Director)

Shri. Arvind Nandagopal (Managing Director) (resigned on October 2, 2023) (Director) (from October 2, 2023 till December 28, 2023)

Smt Jamuna Sounderam (Independent Director)
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Executive officers

Shri T. Krishnamurthy (Chief Financial Officer)

Company Secretary

Shri K. Senthil Kumar (resigned on August 7, 2023)

The details of amounts due to or due from related parties as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Binny New Re Energy Limited          263.11          263.11 

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited      11,935.35      22,560.24 

Binny Mills Limited        (973.38)        (973.38)

Mira Textiles and Industries Limited           17.47           36.47 

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars Maximum amount outstanding 
during the year ended March 31,

2024 2023

Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries

Binny New Re Energy Limited          263.11          263.11 

The details of related parties transactions entered into by the company for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are 
as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Settlement of advances

Mohan Breweries and Distilleries Limited      10,624.90      30,654.83 

Mira Textiles and Industries Limited          360.00                -   

Advances given

Mira Textiles and Industries Limited          379.00                -   

Transactions with key management personnel

The table below describes the compensation to key management personnel which comprise directors and executive officers:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Salaries and other short term employee benefits payable to executive officers           60.15           60.05 

Commission and other benefits to non executive / independent directors          110.63           60.05 
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2.28 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its 
average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for 
CSR activities are promoting education, promoting gender equality by empowering women, healthcare, environment sustainability, 
art and culture, destitute care and rehabilitation, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee 
has been formed by the Company as per the Act. The details of funds primarily utilized through the year on these activities which are 
specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 122.86 82.26 

ii) Amount of expenditure incurred -   3.23 

iii) Short fall at the end of the year (1) 122.86 79.03 

iv) Total of previous year shortfall -   -   

v) Reason for shortfall No projects 
finalized

Pertains to 
ongoing projects

vi) Nature of CSR Activities Promoting education, promoting 
gender equality by empowering 
women, healthcare, environment 
sustainability, art and culture, 
destitute care and rehabilitation, 
disaster relief, and rural 
development projects

vii) Details of related party transactions, e.g. contribution to a trust controlled by the 
Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Indian Accounting Standard

NA NA

viii)  Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a 
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown 
separately

NA NA

(1) The unspent CSR amount for the year ended March 31, 2023 was transferred to the 
Unspent CSR Account within the prescribed time limit in accordance with the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules. However, the unspent 
CSR amount for the year ended March 31, 2024 has not been transferred to the Unspent 
CSR Account within the prescribed period.

2.29 Prior Period Items

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company recognised expenses aggregating ` 325.28 lakhs disclosed in Note 2.22 relating 
to earlier financial years. These expenses were identified/crystallised during the current year and, based on management’s assessment, 
do not represent correction of a prior period error under Ind AS 8. Accordingly, these have been recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 under the relevant expense heads and comparative figures have not been restated.

2.30 Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024 and prior to the approval of these standalone financial statements, the Company 
entered into an amendment / settlement agreement dated 6 August 2025 with one of its joint development partners in relation to the 
arbitration proceedings and Phase I of the project. The agreement provides for receipt of an additional ` 30,000 lakhs, over and above 
` 62,351.95 lakhs received up to 31 March 2024, and revises the commercial terms including the methodology of consideration/
revenue sharing.

The Company has considered the above as an adjusting event in accordance with Ind AS 10, as the settlement/amendment provides 
additional evidence of conditions that existed as at 31 March 2024 (including the rights and obligations under the joint development 
arrangement and the dispute pending as at the reporting date). Accordingly, the Company has adjusted the amounts recognised in 
these standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024. The related impact has been disclosed in the relevant note 
on Revenue from Operations.
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2.31 Capital Management

The Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is 
to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital. The Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between 
the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital 
position. 

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined 
as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all 
components of equity other than amounts accumulated in the effective portion of cash flow hedges. the Company's adjusted net debt 
to equity ratio at the respective dates (mentioned below) was as follows:

(In ` Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2024
Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Total liabilities      44,997.30      51,875.21 

Less : Cash and cash equivalents        (218.08)        (823.85)

Adjusted net debt      44,779.22      51,051.36 

Total equity      40,119.40      42,553.32 

Less: effective portion of cash flow hedges                -                  -   

Adjusted equity      40,119.40      42,553.32 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio             1.12             1.20 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in 
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

2.32 The Company has not prepared consolidated financial statements for the reporting period, as the financial statements of the 
subsidiary have not been prepared for the period. Accordingly, the Company has presented only standalone financial statements and 
has not consolidated the financial results of the subsidiary.

2.33 Previous years' figures have been regrouped / reclassified / restated wherever necessary to confirm to current years' classification.
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2.34 Ratios

The ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Particulars Numerator/Denominator
March 31,

Variance in %
2024 2023

Current Ratio Current Assets/Current Liabilities 1.84 1.76  4.76 

Debt-Equity Ratio (1) Total Debt/Shareholder’s Equity 0.00 0.05  (94.42)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (1) Earnings available for debt service/Debt Service 0.97 2.06  (52.88)

Return on Equity Ratio (Net Profits after taxes)/Average Shareholder’s Equity (0.06) 0.15  (20.86)

Inventory turnover ratio (2) Cost of goods sold OR sales/Average Inventory 0.02 0.03  (40.86)

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales/Average Accounts Receivable  NA  NA  NA 

Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchases/Average Trade Payables  NA  NA  NA 

Net capital turnover ratio (3) Net Sales/Working Capital 0.17 0.38  (55.10)

Net profit ratio (4) Net Profit/Revenue  (0.38) 0.41  193.59 

Return on Capital employed (5) Earning before interest and taxes/Capital Employed  (0.06) 0.25  (30.94)

Return on investment  - 

Unquoted Income Generated from Investments/Time weighted 
average investments

 -  -  - 

Quoted Income Generated from Investments/Time weighted 
average investments

0.17 0.00  17.56 

(1) Debt-Equity ratio and Debt Service Coverage ratios have improved on account of substantial repayments during the year

(2) Inventory turnover ratio has decreased because of reduction in purchases compared to previous year

(3) Net capital turnover ratio has reduced on account of reduction in sales compared to previous year

(4) Net profit ratio has reduced on account of impairment of advances, higher cost of goods sold and increased payroll costs during 
the year

(5) Return on Capital employed ratio has reduced on account of company incurring a net loss during the year
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S No Disclosure requirement as per 
Amended Schedule III Remarks for Non Disclosure (If any)

1 Title deeds of Immovable Property not 
held in name of the Company

The Company does not hold any immovable propert under the head property, 
plant and equipment, hence disclosure under this clause is not applicable

2 Revaluation of Property, Plant & 
Equipment

The Company has not revalued any of Property, Plant & Equipment, hence 
disclosure under this clause is not applicable

3 Revaluation of Intangible Assets The Company doesn't have any Intangible Assets, hence disclosure under this 
clause is not applicable

4 Loans or Advances in the nature 
of loans are granted to promoters, 
directors, KMPs and the related parties

Refer to Note 2.7

5 Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) Nil

6 Intangible assets under development Nil

7 Details of Benami Property held The Company has no Benami Property held in its name, Hence disclosure 
under this clause is not applicable

8 Borrowings from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets

The Company has not availed borrowings from banks on the basis of security 
of current assets

9 Wilful Defaulter The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
Institution or other lender, Hence disclosure under this clause is not applicable

10 Relationship with Struck off Companies The Company has no Transactions with Struck off Companies, Hence no 
disclosure under this clause is applicable.

11 Registration of charges or satisfaction 
with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There are no charges which were not registered / satisfied with Register of 
Companies 

12 Compliance with number of layers of 
companies

The Company has complied with the layers of Investments

13 Anyaltical Ratios Attached herewith in the Annual Accounts

14 Compliance with approved Scheme(s) 
of Arrangements

The Company has no Scheme of Arrangements approved or pending for 
approval by the competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

15 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and 
share premium

(a) �No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in 
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) �No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign 
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

16 Undisclosed Income Nil

17 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Refer to note 2.28

18 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual 
Currency

The Company has not Traded or invested in cryto currency or virtual currency, 
Hence disclosure under this clause is not applicable
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